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Independent auditor’s report

To the Shareholder, Board of Directors and Management of KazTransGas J5C

Opinion

We have audited the cansolidated financial siatements of KazTransGas JSC and its subsidiaries
(the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying conselidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018 and its
consolidated financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the international Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of the audit of the consclidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming the auditor's opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion an
these matters. For each matter below, cur description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's respansibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report, including In relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstaternent of the consolidated financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matters

Recoverability of financial assets

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has
investments in Beineu-Shymkent Gas
Pipeline LLP, joint venture of the Group, and
significant loans issued to this joint venture.
The assessments of recoverability of this
investment and collectability of the loans are
complex, largely subjective and based on
assumptions, in particular, on forecasted
ability of the borrower to pay. Therefore, this
matter was ane of the most significance in
our audit.

Information assariated with the investments
in, and loans to Beineu-Shymkent Gas
Pipeline LLP and is disclosed in Notes € and
8 to the consolidated financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

We obtained understanding of the process of
the estimation of recoverability of
investments in Beineu-Shymkenl Gas
Pipeline LLP and loans issued to it. We
analyzed information used by the Group,
including the financial statements and long-
term business madel of Beineu-Shymkent
Gas Pipeline LLP. We assessed major
assumptions and mathematical accuracy of
the madel. We considered the consistency of
Beineu-Shymkent Gas Pipeline LLP's
business mode| with expected demand for
gas transportation services based on known
sales contracts of the Group.

Gas pipeline abandonment and site restoration provision

We considered this matter to be one of the
most significance in our audit because the
calculation of gas pipeline abandonment and
site restoration provision requires significant
judgment due to the inherent complexity in
estimating future costs and due to the
significance of this liability to the financial
statements. The Group's estimation of gas
pipeline abandonment and site restoration
provision incarporates the effects of
expected approach to decommissioning and
discount rates, effects of changes in local
regulations along with the effects of changes
in inflation.

Information associated with gas pipeline
abandonment and site restoration is
disclosed in Notes 2 and 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Compliance with loan covenants

In accordance with the terms of certain
financing arrangements, the Group should
maintain and comply with certain financial
and non-financial covenants. Breaching
covenants could result in significant fines
and penalties along with funding shortages.
In addition, cross default provisions are in
place under the Group's financing
arrangements.

Our procedures involved obtaining
understanding of legal and constructive
obligations with respect to the
decommissioning process based on the
contractual arrangements, relevant local
regulation and existing business practice. We
considered the competence and objectivily
of the experts involved by the Group for
making future cost estimates. We analysed
the calculations and evaluated the discount
rate and inflation rate used.

We examined the terms of financing
arrangements. We compared data used in
the financial covenants compliance
calculations with the consolidatad tinancial
statements as well as the financial
statements of subsidiaries.
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Compliance with covenants was one of the We assessed arithmetic accuracy of financial
matters of most significance in the audit since  covenants calculations. In addition, we

it can have a major impact on the going performed procedures to evaluate compliance
concern assumption used in the preparation with non-financial covenants under the

of the consalidated financial statements, and ~ Group’s financing arrangements.
on classification of tha liabilities under

financing arrangements in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

Information about loan covenants is disclosed
in Note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Other information included In the Group’s 2018 Annual report

Other information consists of the information included in the Group's 2018 Annual Report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Management is
responsible for the other information. The Group’s 2018 Annual Report is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as & going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detact 3 material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consalidated financial
statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We alsa:

L3

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consalidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, fargery,
intentional amissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control,

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude an the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may casl significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modity our
gpinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
antities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse cansequences of doing so would reascnably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The partner in charge of the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Paul Cohn,

M&Mﬂ?’

-

—~

Paul Cohn
Audit Partner

=
Aigerim Nurkeriova
Auditor General Director

Ernst and Young LLP

Qualified audit license No, M®-0000115 State audit license for audit activities on the

dated 21 September 2012 territory of the Republic of Kazakhstan: series
MDK-2 No. 0000003 issued by the Ministry of
finance of the Republic of Kazakhstan on
15 July 2005

050060, Republic of Kazakhstan, Almaty

Al-Farabi ave., 77/7, Esentai Tower

20 February 2018



KazTransGas JSC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Consolidated financial statements

_As at December

In thousands of tenge Motes 2018 2017
Assets
Non-current assets
Froperty, plant and equipment 4 990,553,112 a73,582,370
Exploration and evaluation assels L] 11,838,832 12,051,402
Intangible assels 5,695,763 4,747.183
Investments in joint venturas (5] 21,899,271 5,185,395
Advances paid for non-current assets 7 8,733,969 2,928,599
Loans to related party B 154,926,469 135,190,963
MNen-current financial assets 2373194 2078177
VAT recoverable g 92910112 48,321,910
Deferred tax assels 28 189,372 3,527,073
Other non-current assets 375,138 265,735
Bank deposits 10 4,611,816 5,404 211
1,294,108,246 1,093,283,218
Current assets
Inventories 12 60,257,658 17,539,716
Trade and cther receivables 13 126,884 462 160,368,738
Loans o related parly 8 71,392,215 72,366,122
Advances paid 7 5,655,622 4,843,166
Prepaid taxes other than income tax g 10,651,416 7,B46 304
Corporate income tax prepaid 20,728,947 16,731 818
Other current assets 637,169 241,464
Bank deposits 10 398,212 148,116
Gash and cash equivalents 11 151,155,747 23,974,879
447 402,449 304,060,323
Total assets 1,741,510,695 1,397,343 541

The accompanying noles on pages 6 to 58 are an integral part of these consolidated ffnancial starements.



KazTransGas JSC Consalidated financial statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

As at December

In thousands of lenge  Notes 2018 2017
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capital 14 192,623,055 192 623,055
Additional paid-in capital 14 249,054,740 243 148 277
Foreign currency translation reserve 548,148 546,149
Retained eamings 358,270,270 210,707,808
- 800,494,214 647,025,289
Non-current liabilitias
Debt securities issued 15 281,626,098 252 648 513
Interest bearing loans 16 181,478,932 113,304 547
Loans from related parly 17 8,905,541 §,335226
Employee benefit abligations 1,715,974 1,110,423
Provisions 18 60,764,700 51,674,058
Other non-currant financial liabilities 2,128,487 1,570,175
Other non-current liahiliies 14 B, 144,532 8,327,738
Deferred tax liabilities 28 51828912 41101462

807,560,176 479,074,442
Current liabilities
Debi securilies ssued 15 3,420,482 11.871.439
Intarest bearing loans 16 31,105,703 18,321,845
Loans from related party 17 25,198,509 43 386,615
Provisions 18 34 582,390 24 629,398
Trade and other payables 20 209,375,852 149,109,414
Taxes payable other than income fax 3,219,593 1.642,303
Contract liabilities 21 8 066,269 5,635,991
Other current financial liabilities 3,420,675 2634602
Other current liabilities o 22 13,068,827 13,012,103

333,456,305 271.243.810
Total equity and liabilities 1,741,510,695 1,397,343,541

Deputy of General Director on economics and finance Lt -
zak T.4h.

(K

Chief Accountant \
Meldek

The accompanying notes on pages 6 (o 58 are an integral part of these consolidated financial staiements.



KazTransGas JSC

Consolidated financial statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the years ended 31 December

In thousands of tenge Notes 2018 2017
Revenue 23 921,179,600 581,756,771
Cost of sales = 24 (678,104,234) (434,793,202)
Gross profit 243,075,366 145,963,569
General and administrative expenses 25 (26,153.670) (21.454,044)
Reversal of allowance for expected credil losses 1,348,077 =
Other operaling income 26 4,767,720 5,064,173
Other operating expenses 26 {14,604 ,064) (6,460,431)
Operating profit 208,434,428 122,113,267
Gain on sale of interest ownership 2 15,108,842 -
Finance income 27 13,884,999 14,630,067
Finance costs 27 (38,977,393) (36,924 516)
Share in income/(loss) of joint ventures G 16,748,976 {A33,390)
Foreign exchange (loss)/gain, net {11,560,507) 373,836
Frofit before income tax 203,640,346 99 458 264
Income tax expensas 28 (47,665,288} (24,678 324)
Net profit for the year 155,975,058 74,780,940
Other comprehensive loss (208,970) (257 8920)
Comprehensive loss not to be reclassified to

profit and loss in subsequent periods
Actuarial loss on defined benefit plans (261.212) (322 400)
Impact of income fax benefit 28 52,242 54 480
Met comprehensive loss not to be reclassified to
_profit and loss in subsequent periods (208,970) (257,920)
Total comprehensive income for the year,

net of income tax 155,766,088 74,522,020
Earnings per share
Basic and diluted, eamings per share for the year attributable lo

the parent 14 0.44 0.21

Deputy of General Director on economics and finance

Chief Accountant

Fl .
et
b _;"__)’.!'J-.:L a7, Zh,

Meldekhanow BN,

The gecompanying notes on pages 6 to 38 are an integral part of theve conselidated financial siafements



KazTransGas J5C

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Consolidated financial statements

For the years ended 31 December

In thousands of tenge _ Notes 2018 2017
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers 998,665,350 584,834,883
Return of advances paid to suppliers = 32,579,501
Cash receipts from managsment fee 14,180,776 18,847 418
Interest received 7,191,299 4 554 3956
Taxes refund from budget 4 807,244 4,112 650
Other receipts 989,364 727 624
Paymenls lo suppliers (695,365,711) (430,060,274)
Income tax paid (35,521,315) (28,897 423)
Other taxes and payments to budget (36,516,476) (30,076,458)
Interest paid (29,826,155) (14,335,880)
Payments to employees (41,394,834) (32,927,904)
Other payments (6,364,913) (2,936,898)
MNet cash inflows from operating activities 178,844,629 108,221,634
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of interest ownership 2 14,472,800 -
Withdrawal of bank deposiis 1,145,123 131,093.676
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and

intengible assets 275,258 25,810
Loans repaid by related party B 16,294,978 -
Dividends received & 35,000 -
Proceeds from sale of invesiment securities 3 13,910,001 -
Piacement of bank depasils (368,707) {113,830,937)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, inlangible assets, and

exploration and evalualion assels (120,941,395} (107,235,401}
Loans provided 1o related party 8 (11,032,435) (136,183,151)
Acquisition of investment securities a (13,910.001) -
Mat eash flows used in investing activities (100,119, 362) (226,130,003)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds on interest bearing loans and debl securities issued 15,18, 31 115,019,917 574,287 516
Froceeds on loans from related party 17, 31 = 25,321,800
Repayments of interest bearing loans and debt securities issued 15, 18, 31 {55,504,846) (378,450,204)
Repayments of loans from relaled party 17, 31 (18,983,228) {142,309 300)
Logn arrangement fee — Pa— (786,120) (1,218.014)
Net cash inflows from financing activities 39,745,723 77,631,798
Net fareign exchange difference on cash and cash equivalents B, 709,828 4,262,990
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 127,180,868 {(38,013,581)
Cash and cash equivalents, at the beginning of the year 11 23,974,879 81,088 460
Cash and cash equivalents, at the end of the year 11 151,155,747 23,874 878

Deputy of General Director on economics and finance

Chief Accountant

The accompanying notes on pages 6 1o 58 are an inlegral part of these consolidaied finaneial statements.
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KazTransGas JSC Consolidated financial stalements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Foraign
Additional currency
Share paid-in transiation Retained

In thousands of lenge ~ capital capital reserve earnings Total
As at 1 January 2017 179.685.175 241,030 826 546,149 144 552 528 565,784,778
Meat profit for the year = = = 74,780,940 74,760,240
Other comprehensive loss for the

year = = = (257,920) (257,920)
Total comprehensive income

for the year - - = 74,523,020 74,523,020
Issue of shares (Note 14) 12,967,880 (12 8967.880) = = -
Contribution from the Shareholder

{MNate 14 and 17) = 15,085,231 = - 15,085,231
Other transactions with

the Shareholder (Note 14) = =t = (8,367 740) (8,387,740)
As at 31 December 2017 182 623,055 243,148,277 546,145 210,707 808 647,025,289
At 1 January 2018 182 623,055 243,148,277 546,148 210,707,808  ©647 025289
Effect of adoption of IFRS 8

(Note 3) . - - - (2503626)  (2,503.626)
At 1 January 2018 192 623055 243148277 546,149 208,204,182 A44 521,663
Met profit for the year = = - 155,975,058 155,975,058
Olher comprehansive |oss
_for the year - i = {208,970) (208,870)
Total comprehensive income

far the year = = - 155,766,088 155,766,088
Gontribution from the Shareholder

{Note 14) - 5,906,463 = o 5,906,463
Other transactions with

the Shareholder (Mote 14) ) = = = (s,700,000) (5,700,000)
As at 31 December 2018 192,623,055 249,054,740 546,149 358,270,270 800,424,214

I:,
B

Deputy of General Director on economics and finance

. ‘/1 . ..;’r
f@ {

e _r,ﬁ-'.hfr’ﬂ'fl‘ﬂ?-i;l‘ B.N. -

Chief Accountant

The accompanying notes on pages 6 to 538 are an itegral part of these consalidated financial statements,
5



KazrTransGas JSC Consolidated financial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018

L. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The accompanying consolidated financial  statements include the financial statements of KazTransGas JSC
(the “Company™ or “KTG") and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) (Nore 2).

KTG is a joint stock company established in accordance with the Resolution of the Government of the Republic of
Kazakhstan (the “Government™) No. 173 dated § February 2000 and was registered as a closed jont stock company an
13 March 2000. On 9 June 2004, the Company was re-registered as a joint stock company under the laws of the Republic
of Kazakhstan. The Group’s head office is registered in the Republic of Kazakhstan, Astang, Yesil district,

Alikhan Bokeykhan avenue, 12.

NC KazMunavGas JSC (“KazMunayGas™) 15 the sole shareholder of KTG. The Government us represented by
“Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna® JSC (“Samruk-Kazyna™) owns 90% minus | (one) share of KazMunayGas,
and all subsidiaries of KazMunayGas and Samruk-Kazyna are considered as related parties of the Company and the Group
{Naie 29).

In accordance with the Resolution of the Government of the RK No. 914 dated 5 July 2012, KTG was appointed as
the national operator in the area of gas production and gas supply. In its role of the national operator, the Group’s main
activities are aimed to ensure reliable supply of commercial gas to meet the domestic demand in Kazakhstan,

The main activities of the Group also include the following:

° Managing of investment activities for the overall development of the main gas pipeline systems within
Kazakhstan;

] Managing of investment activities for gas fields development within Kazakhstan,

. Providing consultancy services in research and development for gas industry;

a Saie of gas to the external and local markets;

o Participation in the development and implementation of state programs for the gas industry development.

The Group's operating activities are regulated by the Law of the Republic of Kazakhstan O Natural Monopolies and
Regulared Markets (the “Law™) as the Group is a natural monopolist in transportation and supply of gas on domestic
markel. According to the Law, the Group’s tariffs related to gas transportation and sales on domestic market are approved
by the Committee of the Republic of Kazakhstan for the Regulation of Natural Monopolies and Protection of Competition
under the Ministry of national economy of the Republic of Kazakhstan and Ministry of Energy of the Republic of
Kazakhstan.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has commitments in the amount of 62,558,109 thousand tenge under the investment
program for 2016-2021 approved by the common order of Vice-Minister of Energy and Chairman of the Commilice on
Regulation of Natural Monopolies and Protection of Competition under the Ministry of national economy of the Republic
of Kazakhstan (as at 31 December 2017: 65,683,267 thousand tenge). The results of the implementation of this program
can influence the future tariffs. As of 31 December 2018, the Group fulfils its obligations under the approved investment
program, taking into account the adjustments made,

The Deputy of General Director on economics and finance and Chief accountant authorized the accompanying
consolidated financial statements for the 1ssuance on 20 February 2019.

Exploration and production of hydrocarbons

In December 2000, the Group signed a Contract with the Investment agency of the Republic of Kazakhstan on exploration
and production of hydrocarbons on North-Ucharal, Ucharal-Kempirtobe territories and blocks XXXII-48, XXXI1-49,
XXXIV-49, XXXIV-50, XXXIV-51, XXXV-30. including Amangeldy, Anabai, Airakty and Kumyrly gas fields, in
Zhambyl oblast, South Kazakhstan (the “Hydrocarbon Agreement™). The duration of the Hydrocarbon Agreement is
31 years. The Group started the production and sale of gas al Amangeldy gas field in November 2003 and at
Zharkum field in December 2014,

Under the terms of the Hydrocarbon Agreement, the Group has the right to relinguish any of the block arcas unless
commercially viable hydrocarbon reserves are discovered.



KarTransGas JSC Conselidated financial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Internarional
Financial Reporting Standards (“TFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (*1ASB7).

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for assets and lizbilities that
were valued at fair value as described in the accounting policies and the notes to these consolidated financial statements,
All values in these consolidated financial statements are rounded to the nearest thousands, except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries are consolidated by the parent company from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the latter
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. The financial statements of
the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent company, using consistent accounting policies
for all companies of the Group. All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealized gains and losses and cash flows resulting
from intra-group transactions and dividends were eliminated in full.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a change of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

IT the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it

. Derecognises the assets (including goodwill} and liabilities of the subsidiary;

s Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-contralling interest:

s Derecognises the cumulative translation differences, recorded in equity:

s Recognises the fir value of the consideration received;

s Recognises the fair value of any investment retained:

- Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss;

® Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognized in other comprehensive income to profit or

loss or retained earnings, as appropriate.

Subsidiaries

Asat 31 December 2018 und 31 December 2017, the Company had interest ownership in the following companies, which
were 1ncluded into the consolidated financial statements:

Place of __Ownership
Name incorporation Principal activities 2018 2017

Intergas Central Asia JSC (ICA) Kazakhstan Transportation and sicrage of gas and rendering
technical services for gas pipelines in Kazakhstan  100%  100%

KazTransGas Aimak JSC Kazakhstan  Sale of gas to local power distribulors, legal

(KTG Aimak) entities and individuals 100% 100%
KazTrans(Gas Onimderi LLP Kazakhstan Transportation services

(KTG Onimden) 100% 100%
Amangeldy Gas LLP Kazakhstan Production of natural gas and gas condensate

(Amangeldy Gas) 100% 100%
KMG Kansu Operating LLP Kazakhstan Exploration of natural gas and gas condensate 100%  100%
Intergas Finance B.V, (IFBV) Metherlands  Issue of Eurcbends (raising debt funds) 100%  100%
KazTransGas Bishkek LLC Kyrgyzsian  Repair and renewal operations and modernization

(KTG Bishkek) of the main gas pipeline “Bukhara gas area -

Tashkent - Bishkek — Almaty” 100% 100%

AstanaGas JSC Kazakhstan  Construction and exploitation of pipeline "Saryarka - 100%

As of 31 December 2017. KazTransGas JSC had 100% legal awnership in KazTransGas Thilisi LLC (KTG Tbilisi). On
16 March 2009 the City Court of Kutaisi disqualitied the Company from exercising rights that give it the ability to direct
the relevant activities of K TG Thilisi. As a result, the Company last control over KTG Thilisi and ceased consolidation
since the date of loss of control.



KazTransGas JSC Consolidated finaneial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Subsidiaries feonilineed)

On 13 September 2018, the Company and the Government of Georgia signed an arbitration agreement on the peaceful
settlement of the dispule as a result of which KazTransGas JSC sold 100% shaves of KTG Thilisi for
15,109,600 thousand tenge (equivalent to 40,000 thousand US dollars). On 28 September 2018, the Company collected
proceeds from sale of interest ownership of 14,472,800 thousand tenge (equivaient to 40,000 thousand US dollars).

On 2 October 2018, the Company finalized sale of 50% interest in AstanaGas JSC to Samruk-Kazyna and 50% interes
in the entity to Baiterek Venture Fund JSC, a subsidiary of NMH Baiterek JSC. Total amount of gain on disposal and
consideration received equals o 242 thousand tenge. At disposal date, the net assets of AstanaGas JSC was ¢qual to zero.

Investmenirs in joint ventures

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the Group had intercsts in the following joint ventures which are
accounted for in the consalidated financial statements using the equity method:

Share, %
Place of 31 December 31 Decamber
Name incorparation Principal activities 2018 207
Asia Gas Pipeline LLP (AGP) Kazakhstan Construction and operaling
Kazakhstan — China gas pipeline 50% 0%
Beineu-Shymkant Gas Kazakhstan Construction and operaling Eaineu-
Fipeline LLP (BShP) Bozoi-Shymkent gas pipeline 50% 50%
AvioGaz LLP (AG) Kazakhstan Organization, operation, construction
and maintenance of gas filling
compressor slations 50% 50%

The Group has interests in joint arrangements in the form of joint ventures. whereby the venturer have a contractual
arrangement that establishes joint control over the economic activities of the entities. The agreement requires unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control. Investments in joint ventures are accounted for by the Group using the equity
method.

Under the equity method, the investment in the joint venture is carried in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost plus post acquisition changes in the Group's share of net assets of the joint venture. Goodwill related to joint
activities is included into the carrying amount of the investment and is neither amortized, not individually tested for
impairment.

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income reflects the Group’s share in financial results of operations of a joint
venture. Where there has been a change recognized directly in the equity of the joint venture, the Group recognizes
its share of such change and discloses, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealized
gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and joint venture are eliminated at conselidation to
the extent of the intergst in the joint venture,

The share of the Group in profit or loss of joint venture is shown on the face of the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. This is the profit or loss attributable to participants of the joint venture and therefore is profit or
loss after tax and non-controlling interests i the subsidiaries of the joint venture.

The financial statements of the joint venture are prepared for the same reporting, period as the Group. When necessary,
adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

Afler application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary 1o recognize an impairment loss on
the investment in joint venture, The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that an
investment in joint venture is impaired, I this is the case the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the joint venture and its carrying amount and recognizes the loss in the “share in loss
of joint venture” in the consolidated slalement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation {(continued)

Avgueisiiion of subsidiaries from parties uader common confrol
Purchases of subsidiaries from parties under commaon control are accounted for using the pooling of interest method

The assets and liahilities of the subsidiary iransferred under commaon control are recorded in these consolidated financial
statements al the carrying amounts of the transferring entity (the Predecessor) at the date of the transfer, Related pooadwill,
if any. inherent in the Predecessor's original acquisition is also recorded in these consolidated financial statements,
Any difference between the total book value of net assets, including the Predecessor’s goodwill, and the consideration
paid is accounted for in these consolidated financial statements as an adjustment to equity.

1f such acquisition is considered material then the consolidated financial statements, including comparative amounts, are
presented as if the subsidiary had been acquired by the Group on the date it was originally acquired by the Predecessor.

Foreign currency translation

Funictional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Kazakhstani tenge (“tenge™), which is the tunctional currency of
most entities of the Group, Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.

Transactions and bafances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at functional currency spol rates prevailing at the date when
the transaction meets recognition criteria. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the funetional currency spot rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. All ditferences arising from
repayment or restatement of monetary items are stated in the consolidated statemem of comprehensive income.

Mon-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-manetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
rranslated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. Gains or losses arising on translation of
non-monetary items are recorded in accordance with principles of income or expense recognition as a result of change in
the item fair value (i.e. exchange differences on items, fair value gains or losses of which are recopnized within other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, are also recognized within other comprehensive income or profit or loss,

respectively).

Ciranp companies

The results and financial position of all of the Group's subsidiaries and joint ventures (none of which has the currency of
a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency difterent from the presentation currency are translated into
the presentation curreney as follows:

s Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the closing rate at that
reporting dates;
s Incame and expenses for each statement of comprehensive income are translated at average exchange rates (unless

this average is nol a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

] All resulting exchange differences are recognized as a separate component of other comprehensive ingome.

Foreign exchange rates

Weighted average currency exchange rates established by the Kazakhstan Stock Exchange (“"KASE") are used as official
currency exchange rates in the Republic of Kazakhstan.

As at 31 December 2018, the currency exchange rate of KASE was 384.20 tenge to | US dollar. This rate was used for
tranalation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in US dollar at 31 December 2018 (at 31 December 2017:
332.33 tenge o 1 US dollar).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimales
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues. expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities and assets, at the reporting date. However, unceriainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment 1o the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in
the future.

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, which have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Taxation

In assessing tax risks, management considers to be probable obligations the known areas of tax posilions which the Group
would not appeal or does not believe it could successfully appeal, if assessed by tax authorities. Such determinations
inherently involve significant judgement and are subject lo change as a result of changes in tax laws and regulations,
the determination of expected outcomes from pending tax proceedings and the outcome of engoing compliance audils by
tax authorities. Further details regarding 1ax risks are contained in Mofe 30,

Allowarce for VAT recoverable

The Group determines whether VAT recoverable is doubtful at least on an annual basis. Allowance for doubtful
VAT recoverable is based on the management's expectations on future VATable turnovers and VAT refund in cash.
Significant management judgement is required to determine whether the Group can further defend its right for
VAT refund or offset. Further details are contained in Nore 9.

Deferred tax ussels

Deferred tax assets are recognised for loans receivable, prior years' tax losses carried forward, allowances for doubtful
debts, accrued vacations and other liabilities to the extent that it is probable that taxable temporary differences and
business nature of such expenses will be proved, as well as successful application of tax planning strategies. In the
statement of financial position, deferred tax assets and liahilities are presented separately, since they are related to various
entities of the Group and may not be offset against each other in accordance with the tax legislation. Further details are
contained in Nore 28,

Fair value of financial insiruments

Where the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined
using valuation technigques including the discounted cash flows model.

The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible. but where this is not feasible. a degree of
judgement is required in establishing fair values. The judgements include liguidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes
in valuations and judgements can affect the fair values of financial instruments.

Allowance for expecied credit losses

Management maintains an allowance for expected credit losses resulting from expectations, which based on ability of
customers to make required payments. The Group has estublished a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment,

Employee henefiis

The costs of future social benefit to employees are determined using actuarial valuations, Actuarial method involves
the use of different assumptions, which may differ from actual results in future. Actuarial method comprises assumptions
on discounting rates, future salary growth and morrality rate. Due to the difficulty of assessing the basic assumptions and
long-term obligations under the defined benefit plans, such obligations are highly sensitive to changes in assumptions.
All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

In determining the appropriate discount rate the Group’s management considers the interest rates on government bonds
with extrapolated maturities corresponding to the expected term of defined benefits. The mortality rate is based on
publicly available mortality tables for the specific country. Future salary increases are based on expected future inflation
rates for the respective country.

1]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Principal actuarial assumptions used for valuation of employee benefit obligations are as follows:

2018 2017
Discounl rale 5.168% B.96%
Future salary increase 6.4% 6.8%
Maortality rate 12% 14 0%

The expected cost of employee benelits isaccrued over the period of employment using the same accounting
methodology as used for the defined benefit plan. These obligations are valued by independent gualified actuarics on an
annual basis,

Liseful life of praperty, plamt and equipment

Additions or improvements to property, plant and equipment managed and operated under the Trust Management
Agreement are capitalized and depreciated owver an estimated remaining useful life regardless of the term of
the Agreement. The Group assesses the remaining useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment at least al each
financial vear-end and, if' expectations difler from previous estimates, changes are accounted for prospectively as changes
in accounting estimates in accordance with 1AS 8 Accownting Policies, Chanees in Avcounting Estimaies and Errors,

Tmpairment of propecty, plam and equipment and gas assets

An impairment exists when the carrying amount of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of: its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The fair value less costs ta sell caleulation is based on
available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assels or observable market prices
less incrememal costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow maodel.
The cash Mows are derived from the budget for the next five (5) vears and do not include restructuring activities that
the Group is not vet committed to or signilicant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the cash
generating unit being tested.

The recoverable amount is most sensitive 1o the discount rate used for the discounted cash Now model as well as
the expected tuture cash inflows and growth rates used for extrapolation purposes.

Assets retirement obligalions

In accordance with the Law of the Republic of Kazakhstan On Muin Pipelines dated 4 July 2012, the Group has legal
obligations to dismantle and remove tangible assets and restore the land, Specifically, the Group's obligation relates 10
removal of gas pipelines and recultivation of the land plots,

The amount of the obligation is the present value of the estimaled expenditures expected (o be required to settle the
ohligation. The Group reviews abandonment and site restoration provisions at each reporting date and adjust them to
reflect the current best estimate in accordance with IFRIC | Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and
Similar Liabilities. Estimating the future costs involves significant estimates and judgments by management. Muost of
these obligations are many years in the future and, in addition to ambiguities in the legal requirements, the Group's
estimate can be affected by changes in assetl removal lechnologies, costs and industry practice. Uncertainties related to
the final costs are mitigated by the effects of discounting the expected cash flows. The Group estimates future gas pipelines
abandonment cost using current year prices and the average long-term inflation rate

The lang-term inflation and discount rates used to determine the obligation in the consolidaied statement ol financial
posilion at 31 December 2018 were 5.50% and 9.16%, respectively (2017: 5.57% and 10%). As ar 31 December 2018
the carrying amount of provision for abandonment of gas pipeline and site restoration was equal to
58,838 287 thousand tenge (2017 49,792 367 thousand tenge). Asat 3| December 2018 the carrying amouni of
provision for well abandonment and site restoration under the contract for exploration and production of hydrocarbons
was equal to 1,903,822 thousand tenge (2017: 1.882,591 thousand tenge). Further details are contained in Nate /8.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

New standards, interpretations and amendments adopted to the existing standards and interpretations adopted
by the Group for the first time

The Group applies, for the first time, IFRS 15 Reverme from Conrracts with Customers and IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
that require restatement of comparative information. As required by IAS 34, the nature and effects of these changes are
disclosed below.

The following amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in 2018, but do not have an impact on annual
consolidated financial statements of the Group:

s IFRIC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Considerations,
° Amendments to 1AS 40 Transfers of Investment Property,
° Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions,

° Amendments o [FRS 4 Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts;

] Amendments to 1AS 2B Investments in Associates and Joim Ventures — clanfication that measuring investees al
fair value through profit or loss is an investment-by-investment choice;

e Amendments (o IFRS | Firsi-time Advption of International Financial Reporting Standards — deletion of short-
term exemptions for first-time adopters.

JERS 13 Bevenne from Contracts with Custoners

IFRS 15 supersedes LAS 11 Construction Coniracis, 1AS 18 Revernue and related interpretations and it applics 10 all
revenue arising from contracts with customers, unless those contracts are in the scope of other standards. The new standard
establishes a five-step model o account for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS |5 revenue is
recognised at the amount thai refleets the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods or services fo a customer.

The standard requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances
when applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers. The standard also specifies how to account for
additional costs of obtaining a contract and the costs directly related to fulfilling a contraet.

The Group applied IFRS 15 retrospectively by recognition of the cumulative effect of initial application of this standard
as an adjustment 1o the opening balance of retained carnings at the beginning of the reporting period that includes the dale
of initial application.

Adoption of IFRS 15 did not have significant effect on the annual consolidated financial starements of the Group.
fa)  Sale of gas

The Group’s contracts with customers for the sale of natural gas generally include one performance obligation. The Group
has concluded that revenue from sale of natural gas should be recognized over lime. Therefore, the adoption of IFRS 15
did not have an impact on the timing of revenue recognition.

(ki Rendering services

The Group fulfills performance obligation on a monthly basis and recogmzes revenuc from rendering gas transportation
services and technical maintenance of gas pipelines, based on the actual volumes of services rendered. Revenue from gas
transportation services is recognized over time given that the buyer simultancously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group. The adoption of IFRS 15 did not have an impact on the Group’s revenue and profit or loss from
rendering of services.

fe) Management fee

The Group recognizes management fee, which is related to management of KazMunayGas's joint venture,
KazRosGas LLP, at point in time based on the approval of the declaration of dividends of KazRosGas LLP. Therefore,
the adoption of IFRS 15 did not have an impact on the Group's revenue and profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFECANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

New standavds, interpretations and amendmends adopted to the existng standards and Interpretations adopted
by the Group for the first time {continned)

FFRR 13 Revenwe from Corttracts with Crstomers {cortinaedi

{d}  Advances recefved from customers

Generally, the Group recaives short-term advanses from its costomers. Prior to the adoption of [FRS 15, the Group
presented these advances as advances received in the consolidated staternent of financial position.

Upon the adoption of [FRS 15, for short-term advances, the Group used the practical expedient. As such, the Group will
not adjust the pramised amount of the consideration for the effects of a financing component in contracts, where the
Ciroup expects, af coniract inception, that the period between the time {he custoneer pays for the good or service and when
the Group transfers that promised good or serviee to the customer will be one year ot bess.

The Group changed the presentation of its consolidated statement of fnancial position as at 31 December 2017 renaming
Advances received to Contract liabilities. The amendment did not have any Inipact on the consalidated financial
statements of the Group.

IFRS 9 Financial lustrionrenis

1FRS 9 Financial Instruments veplaces 1AS 30 Financial lnstrenents: Recognition and Measuremerd for annual periods
beginning on or afier | Janvary 2018, bringing iogether all three aspects of the accounting for {inancial instraments:
classification and measucement; itmpalment; and hedge accounting,

With the exception of hedge accounting, which the Group spplied prospectively, the Group has applied IFRS S
retrospectively, with the inital application date of ! Janoary 2014,

The Group did not restate the eorparadive information for the annual peried beginning 1 Januery 2017 and recopnized
the adinstment to the opening balance of retamed earnings as at § January 2018,

fa)  Classification and measurement

[sterest bearing loans to related party, as well as trade receivables and amounts due from credit institutions are held o
collect contraciual cash flows and are expected to give rise to cash flows representing solely payments of principal and
interest. The Group analysed the conractual cash flow chavacteristics of those instruments and eonciuded that they meet
the eriteria for amortised cost measurement under IFRS 9. Interest-free loans to related party do not meel criteria for
amortized costs or FYOCT and measured at FYPL. The Group assessed the confractual cash fiow characteristics of the
finsmcial asset on the basis of the facts and circumstances that existed at the initial recognition of the fimancial asset. Due
to short-ierm natore, the carrying valoe of interest-free loans 1o refated pamy approximates its fair value. The
reclassification made did nor affect the consolidated statement of fineneial position and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income of the Group (Nare 8,

(b impairmient

The adoption of IFRS 9 bas fundamentally changed the Grosp’s accounting for impairment losses for financial assets by
replacing 1AS 39%s incurred loss approach with a forwand-locking expected credit loss (ECL) approach.

[FRS 9 requires the Greup to record an allowance for ECLs For all deb( Tinancial asseis not held at FVPL.

ECLs are based on the difference between the contraciual cash flows doee in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation o the asset's onginal
effective interest rate.

For rade accounts receivables, the Grovp bas applisd the staodard’s simplitied approech and has calendated ECLs based
on lifefime expecled credit losses. The Groop has established 2 provision matrix that is based on the Group's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for Forward-looking frckors specific to the debtars and the econaric envivoninent.,

For ather debt financial asseis {i.¢., [oans to related parties, baok deposits and fmancial guarantee obligations), the ECL
is based on the |2-month ECL. The 12-meonth ECL i3 the portion of [ifetime ECLs thet resuhs from default events ost ¢
financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. However, when there has been &
sianificand increase in credit risk since origination, the ellowrnce will be based on the fifetime ECL.

i3
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NOTES TG THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

K SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

New standards, interpretations and amendments adopied to the existing standards and interpeetations adepted
by the Group for the first tlme (continued)

IFRI O Fingnoral Insfruments {comtimived)

(bl hmpairment (contipred)

The adoption of the ECL: requiremenis of IFRS 9 resolted in increase in impairment allowances of the Group’s irade
accouns receivables, loans to related partics and increuse i financial guarantee obligations. As 1 vesult of this increase,
the Group adjusted the balance of retnined earmings as at 1 Janvary 2018 in the annyai consclidated stztement of changes
in equity for BCL for financia) assets at amortized cost and financial guarantee obligations.

LAS 1.82 (bs) requires that the statement of profit or loss include Line items that present the impairment losses {ineluding
reversals of impairment losses or impaitment gaing) determined in aceordance with IFRS 9. The Group presents its net
impairment gains determined i accordance with 1FR8 9 separately in the annual consolidated statement of
camprebensive income,

{¢¢  Hedge accannting

The Group doss not have hedge relationships that ane currently designated as effective hedging relationships and thersfote
applying the hedging requirements of TFRS 9 do not have an inpact on the Group”s financia! statements.

fd)  Okher adjustmenns

In addition to the adjustments described above, upon adoption of IFRS ¢, other items of ihe annnal consolidated fnancial
statements such-gs finapcial guarantee ohligation were adjusted as necessary.

Impact on the statement of financial posiion as at 1 January 2018, is as follows:

Effects of
As at 31 Decembar adopticn of  As at { January

in thousands of lenge 2017 IFRS 9 018
Assets
Trada accounts receivable
Al cost 156,928,541 - 166,928 541
Less: impairment {6,559 803) (755,354) {7.316,157)

180,368,738 (756,3584) 159,612,384
Loans to ralated party
Al oost 207,928,823 - 207,028,823
Plus; interes! receivable 1,873,080 - 1.873,080
Less; distound (2,264,628) - (2,244.8378)
Lass: impairmant - [354,747) (354,747}

207 557,085 {354,747) 207,202 338
Deferred tax assets 3,527,073 625,906 4,452,879
Equity and llabllitles
Dther corrant financial liabilites
Financial guarantae cbligation (1,947,364) (2,018,431} {3,565,795)
Equity
Relainged eamings 210,707 808 {2,5903,625) 208,204 132

14
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (confinued)

Standards issued but not yet effective

The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yert effective, up to the date of issuance of the
Group's financial statements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt these new and amended srandards and
interpretations, if applicable, when they become effective. The following new standards and amendments are not
applicable or have no significant impact for the Group:

] IFRS 17 Insurance Coniracts,

] Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepaviment Features with Negative Compensation,

] Amendments to IFRS 10 and TAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between ain Investor ared its Assoctate or Joint
Fenture;

® Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtaitment ar Seftlement,

s Amendments to [AS 28 Long-ferm Inferests m Associates and Joint Venfures,

] IFRS 3 Business Combinations ( Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle (issued in December 2017);

e IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements (Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle (issued in December 201 7);

® IAS 12 theome Taves (Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cyele (issued in December 2017):

L] Amendments o [FRS 2 Definition of a Business;

& Amendments to |AS | and LAS 8 Definition of Material:

L] The Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting,

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016 and it replaces 1AS 17 Lewses, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
comtaing a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases-Inceniives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Subsiance of Transactions Involving
the Legal Form of o Lease, IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of leases and requires lessees lo account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar Lo the accounting for
finance leases under 1AS 17, The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of *low-value” assets
(e, personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 menths or less). At the commencement
date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to miake lease payments (Le.. the lease liability) and an asset representing
the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately
recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. The lease term
will correspond to the duration of the contracts signed except in cases where the Group is reasonably certain that it will
exercise contractual extension options.

The Group will make a transition to IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach. Linder this approach the prior
year figures will not be adjusted and both lease liabilities and right-of-use assets will be recognised at the date of transition
o IFRS 16,

For leases previously classified as an operating lease applying 1AS 17 at the date of transition to [FRS 16 the Group will
measure these lease liabilities at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the incremental
harrowing rate at the date of initial application. For leases previously classified as an operating lease applying 1AS 17 the
Group al the date of transition to IFRS 16 will on a lease-by-lease hasis measure right-of-use assets ar either:

u [ts carrying amount as if IFRS 16 had been applied since the commencement date. but discounted using the Group's
applicable incremental borrowing rate at the date of transition lo IFRS 16; or

° An amount cqual to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to that lease recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position immediately before the date of transition
o IFRS 16.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

[FRS 16 Leases (continmed)

The Group has elected to use the following practical expedients proposed by the standard:

] On initial application mitial direct costs will be excluded from the measurement of the right-ofl-use assel;

L] On initial application IFRS |6 will only be applied to contracts that were previously classified as leases;

. For all classes ol underlving assets each lease component and any associated non-lease components will be
accounted as a single lease component;

® Lease payments for contracts with a duration of 12 months or less for the classes of underlying assets other than
land and buildings will continue to be expensed (o the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term;

s L.ease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low value.

During 2018, the Group has performed a detailed assessment of IFRS 16 impact.

Impact on the consolidated statement ol (inancial position as at 1 January 2019 is as follows:

Effecis of

Ag at 31 December adoptionof  As at 1 January
In thousands of tenge 2018 IFRS 16 2019
Assets
Froperty, plant and equipment; 880,553,112 4,784,799 985,337,911
Right-of-use assets - 4,784,799 4,784,799
Advances paid 5 655,822 (2,415,853 3,239,769
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Retained eamings 358,270,270 - 358,270,270
Liahilities
Lease liabilities - 2,368,946 2,368,946

IAS 17 requires disclosing operating lease commitments only for non-cancellable leases, while under IFRS 16 the Group
is also required to include in lease term periods covered by an option (o terminate the lease il the lessee is reasonably
certain not to exercise that option. As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s has no non-cancellable leases.

TFRIC tnterpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

The Interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when lax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the
application of lAS 12 and does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of IAS 12, nor dees il specifically include
requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The Interpretation specifically
addresses the following:

® Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately,

s The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities;

e How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates;
] How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances.

An entity has to determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or more other
uncertain tax treatments. The approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty should be followed. The
interpretation is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after | January 2019, but certain transition reliefs
are available. The Group will apply the interpretation from its effective date. Since the Group operates in a complex lax
environment, applying the Interpretation may affect its financial statements (Vore 30, In addition, the Group may need
1o establish processes and procedures to obtain information that is necessary to apply the Interpretation on a timely basis,

16
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Standards issued bul net vet effective (contineed)
Annual Improvements 2015-2007 Cyele (issued in December 201 7)

1AS 23 Barrowing Casis

The amendments clarify that an entity treats as part of general borrowings any borrowings originally made to develop a
qualifying asset when substantially all of the activities necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are
complete. An entity applies those amendments to borrowing costs incurred on or after the beginning of the annual
reparting period in which the entity first applies those amendments.

An entity applies those amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with early
application permitted. The Group is assessing the potential effect of these amendments on its consolidated financial
statements.

Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities based on their current and non-current classification in the consolidated
statement of [inancial position, An asset is current when it is.

® Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cvele;
L] Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
L] Lxpected 1o be realised within 12 (twelve) months after the reporting period; or

s Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to sertle a liability for at least
12 {(twelve) months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

» It is expected to be seltled in operating cyele;

® It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

8 It iz due to be sertled within 12 (twelve) months after the reporting period; or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 (twelve) months after
the reporting period,

The Group classifies all other liabiliies as non-curvent. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are alwavs classitied
as non-current assets and liabilities.
Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asser or paid to transfer a liahility in an orderly transaction between
markel participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place cither:

e In the principal marker for the asset or liability;
® In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous markel must be accessible lo by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of
a non-financial asset takes into account a markel participant’s ability to pencrate cconomic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufTicient data arc available
1o measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continuwed)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows. based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

. Level | = market guotations ut active market for identical assels or liabilities (without any quotations);

o Level 2 — techmques for which all inputs that relate to the lower hierarchy level which have a significant effect an
the fair value are observable, either direetly or indirectly:

= Level 3 — techniques for which all inputs that relate to the lower hierarchy level which have a significant effect on
the fair value are not observable,

For the purpose of disclosing the fair value, the Group classified assets and liabilities based on their nature, characteristics
and risks aliribulable to them as well as applicable level in the fair value hierarchy as mentioned above.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible
assels are carried at initial cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses (if any).

Intangible assets generated internally within the Group, except for the capitalized costs for development, are not
capiltalized and the related expense is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year in
which it originated.

Intangible assets are amortised over the estimated useful lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The period and accrual method of amortization for an intangible assel are
reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.

Change in the estimated useful life or alleged structure of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the assel
is recorded in the consolidated financial statements as a change in the period or accrual method of amortization depending
on the situation and accounted for as a change in accounting estimates. Expenses on amortization of intangible assets are
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the category of expenses, which carresponds ta
the function of intangible assets. Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimaied useful life,
which is presented in the following table:

Years
Software 7
Other 10

Gains or losses arising from disposal of an imtangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carryving amount of the asset and are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
when the asset is disposed.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recognised in the accounting records at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including fmport duties,
direct non-refundable taxes, costs of borrowings that relates directly to the construction of long-term assets if they meet
the recognition criteria, the cost of replacement of equipment components and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

The expenditures that have resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained beyvond its
originally assessed standard performance (increase of useful life, capacity, ste.) are capitalized as an additional cost of
fixed assets. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced in intervals, the Group
recopnises such parts as individual assets with specific usetul lives and depreciate them appropriately. Likewise, when a
mejor inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as & replacement
il’ the recognition criteria are sansfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the profit or loss as
mcurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (eontinued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (non-gas assets) is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives as follows:

Years
Buildings and constructions 7-100
Gas transportation system 10-70
Machinery and equipment 3-40
Vehicles 520
Other 3-20

lLand is not depreciated.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset} is included
in the cansolidated statement of comprehensive income in the year when the asset is derecopnised.

Provision for decommissioning is recognized in full, on a discounted basis, when the Group has an obligation (o dismantle
and decommission a facility or an item of plant and 1o restore the site on which it is located, and when a reasonable
estimate of that provision can be made.

The assets® residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

Construction-in-progress represents fixed assels under construction and is stated at cost. This includes cost of construction
and equipment and other dircet costs, Construction-in-progress is not depreciated until such time as construction of such
assets is completed and placed into operational use,

Cowts incrwrred prior 1o acquisition of subsurface use right

Costs incurred prior (o signing subsurface use contract are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Subsurfuace uve right costs

Subsurface use rights acquisition costs are capitalized within intangible assets. Each property under exploration is
reviewed on an annual basis to confirm that drilling activity is planned and it is not unpaired. Il no future activity is
planned. the carrying amount of the subsurface use right and related property acquisition costs is written off. Upon
determination of e:.unomically recoverable reserves (proved reserves” or ‘commercial reserves’) and internal approval
of development, the carrving amount of the subsurface use right and related property acquisition costs held on
a field-hy-field basis is aggregated with exploration and evaluation expenditure and transferred to gas assets.

Exploration and evaluation cosis

Once the legal right to explore has been acquired, geological and geophysical exploration costs and costs directly
associated with an exploratory drilling are capitalized as exploration and evaluation intangible or tangible assers.
according to the nature of the costs, until the drilling of the well is complete and the results have been evaluated. These
costs include employee remuneration, materials and fuel used, rig lease costs and payments made to contractors. 1t no
reserves are found, the exploration and evaluation asset is tested for impairment, if extractable hydrocarbons are found
and, subjeet o further appraisal activity, which may include the drilling of further wells, are likely to be developed
commercially, the costs continue to be carried as an intangible asset while sufficient/continued progress is made in
assessing the commerciality of the hyvdrocarbons, All such carried costs are subjeet (o technical, commercial and
management review as well as review for impairment at least once a year to confirm the continued intent to develop or
otherwise extract value from the discovery, When this is no longer the case, the costs are written off. When proved
reserves of gas are determined and development is sanctioned, the relevant expenditure is transferred to pas assets afier
impairment is assessed and any resulting impairment loss is recognized.

Development costs

Expenditures on the construction, installation or completion of infrastructure facilities such as platforms, gas pipelines
and the drilling of producing wells, including unsuccessful development or delineation wells, are capitalized within gas
assets.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continucd)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation of gas avsers

Gas assets are depreciated using the unit of production method on the basis of proved developed gas reserves, except for
infrastructure fucilities, which are depreciated using straight-line basis.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Before 1 Junuary 2018, the financial asscts within the scope of 1AS 39 are classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale financial assets, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the
classification of its financial asscts at initial recognition.

Financial asscts. except for linancial assels at fair value through profit or loss, are recognized initially at fair value, plus
direetly attributable transaction costs,

Purchases or sales of financial asscls thal require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset,

Information on initial recognition and measurement of financial assets alter 1 January 2018 is disclosed above.
Subsequent meastirement

Refore | January 2018, the subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. Derivatives, including separatcd embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments in accordance with 1A% 39,

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are carried in the consalidated siatement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in finance income or finance costs in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative (inancial assets with fixed or determinable paymenis that are not quoted in an
active market. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method (EIR), less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking imto account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fee or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amorfisation is included in finance
income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as expenses of' the period.

Information on subsequent measurement of financial assets after] January 2018 is disclosed above.

Derecognifion

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar linancial assets) is
derccognised from the consolidated statement of financial position where:

® The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

L] The Group has transferred its rights o receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an abligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arranzement; and
gither (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (h) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the assel, but has trangferred control of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOLNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Derecognirion (contfnued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transterred
control af the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case,
the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured al the lower of:
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to
repay.

Impairment of financial assers accovding 1o 145 39

Before | January 2018, the Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any ohjective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or @ group of financial asscts is deemed to be impaired
if, and only 1f, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has oceurred afler the initial
recognition of the asser (an incurred “loss event™) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated,

Fvidence of impairment may include indications that the debiors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty. default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter hankruptey or other
linancial reorganisation. Besides, such evidence include observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows on a finaneial instrument such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

Reversal of impairment losses previously recognised is recorded when the decrease in impairment loss can be objectively
related to an event occurring afier the write-down. Such reversal is recognized as income in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Financial assets carried ar amortised cose

For financial assets carried at amortised cost the Group first assesses individually whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that
are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed linancial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assels with
similar eredit risk characteristics and collecrively assesses them for impairment.

Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised
are nof included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
berween the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit
lpsses that have not yet been incurred),

The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial assets original effective interest rate, [
a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate,

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash Mows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss.

The interest income is recorded as part of finance income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Loans
together with the associated allowance are written off from the consolidated statement of financial position when there is
no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been wansferred to the Group. If, in a
subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account. If a write-oft is later recovered, the recovery is credited to finance costs in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Information about impairment of financial assets according to I'RS 9 is disclosed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets {continued)

Investmerir securities

During 2018, the Group tock advantage of broker services to acquire for trading purposes Government and other securities
ar the Kazakhstan Stock Exchange providing a yield at the rate of 8.3% to 13.3% per annum under the repurchase
agreement (“REPO™) for the total amount of 13,210,001 thousand tenge. The period of holding the securities was
from 1 1o 5 days. The Group recognized interest income on the REPO transactions of 6,069 thousand tenze

Financial liabilities

fritial recognition and measurement

Before | January 2018, the financial liabililies within the scope of |AS 39 are ¢lassified as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition,

Financial liabilities are recopnized initially at fair value and in the case of loans and borrowings. less directly attributable
transaction cosis.

Information on significant changes aller 1 January 2018, 15 disclosed above.

Subsequent measurement

Before 1 January 2018, the measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classitication as follows:

Loarns and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest rate method, Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate method (EIR) amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs thar are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance costs in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Financial guarames contracts

Financial guarantec contracts issucd by the Group are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs beeause the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument. Financial guaraniee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly atiributable to the issuance of the guarantee.

Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher oft the best estimate of the expenditure required 1o settle the present
abligation at the reporting date under [AS 37 (before | January 2018) or allowance for estimated credit losses calculated
according to IFRS 9 (after | January 2018}, and the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Trade aceounts payable

Liabilities for accounts payable are carried at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid 1n the future for
eoods and services received, whether or not billed (o the Group.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing, financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing Hability are substantially modified, sueh an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liahility, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised
threugh the conselidated statement of comprehensive income.

Eud
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

& SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are only ottset and reported at the net amount in the consolidated statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offsel the recognised amounts and the Group intends to
gither settle on a net basis, to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously,

Inventory
Materials and supplies and raw materials are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value,

Inventorics arc accounted for an a first in, first out basis separately for each warehouse.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses al each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
indication cxists, or when annual impairment testing for an assel is required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable
amount. An asset's or cash-penerating unit’s (CGLU) recoverable amount is the higher of fair value of the asset (CGL)
less costs (o sell and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, Where the carrying
amount af an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. the assel is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount,

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that refleets current market assessments of the time value ol money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining
fair value less costs to sell, the relevant valuation model is applied. These calculations are corroborated by valuation
multiples. quoted prices for publicly traded shares of subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared separately
for each of the cash generating units to which individual assets are allocated,

These budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of 3 (five) years. For longer periods, a long-term
growth rate is calculated and applied lo project future cash Now after the [fth year.

Impairmenl losses of continuing operations are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired assel.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s recovergble amount, A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change
in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.
The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does nol exceed its recoverable amount, noer exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for
the assel in prior years, Such reversal is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,

Cash and short-term deposits

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand, and
short-term bank deposits with a maturity of 3 (three) months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash cquivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafis.

Provisions

Provisions arve recognized in the consolidated financial statements when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

If the effect of the time value of money is marterial, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and where appropriate, the risks
specific to the liabilitv. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised
as linance costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Asset retirement obligation (decommissioning)

Provision for decommissioning is recognized in full, on a discounted cash flow basis, when the Group has an obligation
to dismantle and remove a facility or an item of plant and (o restore the site on which it is located, and when a reasonable
estimate of that provision can be made. The amount recognized is the present value of the estimated future expenditure
determined in accordance with local conditions and requirements. A corresponding item of property, plant and equipment,
the amount of which is equivalent to the provision, is also created. Subsequently, this asset 1s depreciated as part of gas
production assets and gas transportation system assets,

Changes in the measurement of an existing decommissioning provision that result from changes in the estimated timing
or amount of the outflow of resources embodying cconomic benelits required to settle the obligation, or change in
the discount rate, is accounted for so that:

{a)  Changes in the provision arc added to, or deducted from, the cost of the related asset in the current period;

(b)  The amount deducted from the cost of the asset shall not exceed its carrying amount. If a decrease in the provision
exceeds the carrying amount of the asset, the excess is recognized immediately as expenses; and

(c) If the adjustment results in an addition 1o the cost of an asset, the Group considers whether this is an indicarion
that the new carrying amount of the asset may not be fully recoverable. If it is such an indication, the Group tests
the asset for impairment by estimating its recoverable amount, and accounts for any impairment loss, in accordance
with LAS 36

Share capital and dividends

Share capital is recognized at cost and is comprised of common shares. Dividends on comimon shares are recognized in
sharcholder's equity as a reduction of shareholder’s equity in the period in which they are declared. Dividends on
the common shares are pavable at the discretion of the Shareholder. Dividends that are declared after the reporting date
are treated as a subsequent event under 1AS 10 Eventy affer the Reporting Daie and disclosed accordingly.

Revenue and expense recegnition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
cun be reliably measured. Revenue from sales is recorded net of indirect taxes. The following specific recagnition criteria
must also be met before revenue is recognised:

Sales of govdy

Revenues from sales are recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of goods have passed to
the buyer,

Rendering of transporitation services

Revenue from transportation services is recognised based on actual volumes of gas transported during the reporting
period.

Management services

Fees for the provision of management services are accrued over a period of time when they are earmed and recognised to
the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will Mlow to the Group.

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and interest bearing financial assets classified as available-for-
sale, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR), which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated {uture cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
where apprepriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability.

The interest income is recorded as part of finance income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,

Pividernds

Dividend income is recognized when the Group’s right to distribution is established. which, as a rule, happens when
the shareholders approve the dividends.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continucd)
Revenue and expense recognition {continued)

Expenses

Expenses are accounted for at the time the actual Qow of the related poods or services occur, regardless of when cash or
its equivalent is paid, and are reported in the consolidated financial statements in the period to which they relate,

Deferred income

Property, plant and equipment obtained on o free of charge basis from government bodies, legal entities or individuals are
recognized at their fair value as deferred income as at the date when they were obtained (received). Deferred income is
allocated to income of one or more reporting periods during which respective depreciation is accrued,

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are dircctly atiributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalized as part of the carrying amount of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense when incurred.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group ineurs in conneetion with the borrowing of funds.

Employee benefils

The Group provides long-term benefits to its employees. in accordance with the collective labour agreement approved by
the Board of Directors. The collective lubor agreement provides for holiday payments, Pensioner/spouse’ death, financial
aid for health improvement and voucher for resort treatments. The entitlement to benefits is usually conditional on
the employee remaining in service up to retirement age.

The expected costs of the benefits associated with payments are accrued over the period of employment using the same
accounting methodology as used for defined benefit post-employment plans. Actuarial gains and losses arising in the year
are taken to other comprehensive income and losses. For this purpose actuarial gains and losses comprise hoth the effect
ol changes in actuarial assumptions and the effect of previous experience owing o the differences belween actuarial
assumptions and actual data, Other changes are recognized in current period including the cost of current services, past
services and the effect of staff reduction or calculations made.

The most significant assumptions used in accounting for defined benelit obligations are discount rate and mortality
assumptions. The discount rate is used to determine the net present value of future liahilities and each vear the unwinding
of the discount on those liabilities is charged to the conselidated stalement of comprehensive income as finance cosl.
Mortality assumption is used to forecast future interest payment flow, which is later discounted to get net present value
of liabilities,

Current income tax

Current income Lux assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that
are enacted or substantively enacted, al the reporting date, in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable
income.

Current income lax relaling to items recognised directly in equily is recognised in equity and not in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax retums with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s provided using the liabilily method on temporary differences at the reporting dale between the tax bases
of assets and liabilitics and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposcs at the reporting dale.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

- Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the rime of the wansaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss: and

® In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
Jjoint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred 1ax assets are recognised or all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses, 1o the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized except:

® Where the deferred tax assers relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profil or loss; and

L] In respeet of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests
in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
difTerences will be used in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilized.

The carrving amount of deferred lax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced 1o the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available 10 allow all or part of the deferred 1ax asset 10 be utilised.
Unrecognized deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profit will allow such asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and labilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected 1o apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.

Deferred (ax relating Lo items recognized outside profil or loss is recognized outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income or
dircetly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists 1o set off current tax assels
against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority,

Value added tax (VAT)

Tax mwhorities allow repaying input VAT and output VAT on a nel basis. Thus, VAT receivable represents VAT on
purchases net of VAT on sales.

VAT payable

VAT is pavable to tax autherities upon collection of receivables from customers. VAT on purchases. which have been
settled at the reporting date, is deducted from the amount payable,

Where an allowance has been made for impairment of receivables, impairment loss is recorded for the gross amount of
the debtor, including VAT, The related VA liability is mantained until the debtor is written off for tax purposes.
VAT recemvabie

VAT receivable is recorded in the accounting records related to purchased goods, work and services, which were
purchased with VAT and if they were used in order to derive income.

Al each reporting date, the VAT receivable is subject to offset against the VAT payable amount.

Contingent assets and liabilities

Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. When the realization of income is virlually
certain, then the related assel is not a contingent asset and its recognition is appropriate.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. They are disclosed unless the possibility
of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

Subscguent events

The results of post-year-end events that provide additional information on the Group’s financial position at the reporting
date (adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Post-year-end events that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements when material.
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KazTransGas JSC Consolidated lMnancial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Construction in progress

Additions

In 2018, additions to construction-in-progress included pipes and other equipment. intended for construction and capital
repair of pipelines (including transfer from inventories). During 2018, additions lo construction-in-progress are mainly
represented by the construction of Turkestan gas compressor station of 38,941,343 thousand tenge, construction of Aral
gas compressor station of 36,218,493 thousand tenge, construction of Korkyt Ata gas compressor station of
36,091.814 thousand tenge, reconstruction and construction of accumulation points of Bozoi UGS with the development
of project design of 5,075,190 thousand tenge. capital repair of main gas pipeline Bukhara-Ural, Central Asia Center - 2.
Central Asia Center — 3 welding works and emergency recovery works of 4,894,342 thousand tenge, construction of
awomated gas distribution stations Zharkent with the development of project design of 2.1537.968 thousand tenge,
construction of automated gas distribution station Shelek and pipe branch with the development of project desizn of
1,425,375 thousand tenge, rehabilitation of K8-10 Aral LPU territory of 1 276.838 thousand tenge.

Transfers

Significant portion of fixed assets placed in operations is related to completion of the above construetion works and
placement of respective property, plant and equipment in operation,

Disposals

Dwring 2018, the Group transferred the training center located in Shymkent, including all its Tixed assets, to the South
Kazakhstan Department of State Property and Privatization. The carryving amount at the date of disposal was
2,477,065 thousand tenge. The respective loss was included in other operating expenses.

Gas transportation system

Additions

In 2018, the Group received gas transportation systems under trust management agreement from the Government with
the fair value ol 4,113.76% thousand tenge (Nore 4] at the date of transfer as contribution to equity.

Other

As at 31 December 201 8 the cost and related accumulated depreciation of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment
still in use was equal to 17,641,864 thousand tenge (as at 31 December 2017: 17,961,973 thousand tenge).

In 2018, the Group capitalized in the carrying amount of property, plam and equipment borrowing costs at the average
interest rate of 10.03% in the amount of 4,694,933 thousand tenge which are related o the construction ol assets
(2017 376,636 thousand tenge at the average interest rate of 10.13%).

5. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

Exploration and evaluation assets were as follows:

in thousands of lenge Tangible assets

At 31 December 2016 12,811,916
Additions 3,351,335
Change in estimate {112,878)
Disposals (78,843)
Transfer {o property, plant and eguipment (3,908,030)
Impairment (12,000)
At 31 December 2017 12,051,402
Additions 3,435,740
Impairment S — (3,647,310)
At 31 December 2018 11,839,832




KazTransGas JSTC Consolidated financial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

5. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS (continued)

The exploration and evaluation assels are represented by the following projects:

In thousands of tengs 2018 2017
Sultankuduk 4,950,657 4 047 984
Anabay 3,753,922 572364
Sherubainur 2,066,562 1,974, 287
Koskudul 427,183 427 183
Barkhan 308,475 233828
Maldybay 110,887 110,791
Kansu = 3,586,082
Other 222148 198 085
11,839,832 12,051 402

[n connection with the planned return of the contract “Kansu” in 2019, the Group recognized an impairment loss on
exploration and evaluation assets of 3,647,310 thousand tenge (Node 26).

6. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Financial information on investrment in joint ventures is summarized below:

In thousands of tenge AGP BShP AG Total
31 December 2017 - 4,084,722 1,100,673 5,185.385
Share in profit of joint venture 104,659,682 21,878,592 39,080 126,677,354
Unrecognized share in profit of joint venture (104,659,682) = - (104,659,682)
Share in olher comprehensive income of joint

venture 1,006,813 - # 1,006,413
Unrecognized share in other comprehensive

incame of joint venture (1,006,413) - - {1,006,413)
Dividends received - (35,000) (35,000)
Consolidation adjustment*® - (5,268,696) = {5,268,6896)
31 December 2018 3 20,794,618 1,104,753 21,899,371

Y Consolickaticn adfesiment represents elimimation of barrswing cosis capialized i the properiy, phans ard eeipmen of the 117 om the loans received
fram KiG vecognized as flmance fncome by K 1.

In thowsands of lenge AGP BShP AG Total
31 December 2016 - - 1,065,363 1,065,363
Share in profit of joint venture 134,700,180 19,035,254 35,310 163,770,744
Unrecognized share in profit of joint venture (134,700,180) (19,035.254) - (153,735,434)
Share of the Group in the recognition of financial

guarantee obligations - 1,070,133 - 1,070,133

Share of the Group in the discount on initial
recognition of the loan provided to the joint

venture = 3,683,289 = 3,683.288
Loss on write-off of discount on interesi-free loan

provided to the joint venture = (888,700) (668, 700)
Share in other comprehensive income of joint

venture 123,419 - - 123 419
Unrecognized share in other comprehensive

income of joint veniure {123.419) = - (123.419)
31 December 2017 = 4,084,722 1,100 673 5,185,385




KazTransGas JSC Consolidated financial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

b. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

AGP

The following table provides summarized financial information about investmemts of the Group in AGP:

In thousands of tenge 2013 2017
Statement of financial position of joint venture

Current assets 543,678,667 518,332,547
Non-current assets 1,460,389,311 1.572,651,805

Current habilities

(390,294,167)

(331,505,535)

Non-current liabilities {1,710,805,217) (2,058 444 374)
Equity deficit (92,031,406) (298 0F5,458)
Proportion of the Group's ownership 50% 50%
Effecl of adoption of IFRS 9 by AGP (2,648,068) -
Carrying amount of investment T =
Cumulative unrecognized share in equity losses {46,015,703) (148,032,729)
Statement of comprehensive income of joint venture

Revenue 766,661,140 BB7 428 795
MNet profit far the year 209,319,364 269,400,360
Olher comprehensive income for the year 2,012826 246 838

On 15 February 2008 according to the agreement between the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan and
the Government of People’s Republic of China on cooperation in the construction and operation of the Kazakhstan-China
2as pipeline, AGP joint venture was established with 50% participation of the Group and 50% participation of Trans-Asia
Gas Pipeline Company Limited. As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the charter capital of AGP was equal to
1,200,000 thousand tenge, of which an amount of 600,000 thousand tenge was paid by the Group.

BShP

The following table provides summarized Nnancial information about investments of the Group in BShP:

in thousands of lenge S 2018 2017
Statement of financial position of joint venture

Current assets 198,892,090 139,271,612
Non-current assets 453 239,989 442 256 509
Current liabilities (104,497,970) (110,872,112)
Non-current liabilities (496,647,747) (464 .526,731)
Equity 49,986,362 6.023.178
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 50% 0%
Share in equity 24 993,181 3,014 589
Share of the Group in the fair value of issuaed financial guarantee 1,070,133 1,070,133
Consolidation adjustment {5.26B,696) -
Carrying amount of investment 20,794,618 4,084, 722
Cumulative unrecngni:ed share in equity losses - -
Statement of comprehensive income of a joint venture

Revenue 150,792,512 79,096,648
MNet profit for the year 43,957,184 38,070,508
Share in profit of a joint venture for the year 21,978,592 -
Olher comprehensive income for the year - =
Additional investment

Fair value of issued financial guarantee 2,140,266 2,140,266
Share of the Group in the fair value of issued financial guaraniee 1,070,133 1,070,133
Discount on initial recognition of the loan provided - 7,388,578
Share of the Group in the discount from initial recognition of the loan provided = 3,683,288
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

6. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

BShP (continued)

On 18 January 2011 according to the agreement between the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan and
the Government of the People’s Republic of China on cooperation in construction and operation of the Kazakhstan-China
gas pipeline, BShP joint venture was established with 50% participation of the Group and 50% participation of Trans-
Asia Gas Pipeline Company Limited. As at 31 December 2018 and 2017 the charter capital of BShP was equal to
145,430,000 thousand tenge, of which an amount of 72,715,000 thousand tenge was paid by the Group.

AG
The following table provides summarized financial information about investments of the Group in AG:

in thousands of tenge 2018 2017

Statement of financial position of joint venture

Current assets 545,229 391,599
Non-current assets 1,754 626 1,879,091
Current liabilities (90,349) (65,344)
Non-current liabililes _ i A
Equity B 2,209,506 2,201,346
Propartion of the Group's ownership 50% 50%
Carrying amount of investment 1,104,753 1,100,673

Cumulative unrecognized share in equity losses = i

Statement of comprehensive income of a jaint venture

Revenue 1,242 880 1,082,792
Met profil for the year 78,160 70,620
Share in profit of a joint venture for the year 39,080 35,310

Cther comprehensive income for the year

7. ADVANCES PAID

in thousands of tenge 2018 2017

Advances paid for non-current assets

Advances paid to third parties 9,003,613 3,204,086

Advances pald to related parties (Note 29) 5,843 -

Less: allowance for possible non-performance (275,487) (275,487
8,733,969 2,928 599

Advances paid for current assets and services

Advances paid to third parties 4,162,500 2,901,474

Advances paid lo relaled parties (Nole 29) 1,502,935 1,948,559

Less: allowance for possible non-performance (9,813) _ (6,867)
5,655,622 4 843,166

At 3| December 2018, advances paid for non-current assets to third parties mainly include advances of
4,100,000 thousand tenge for complex works on turnkey construction of the second launching system of compressor
station TIP-02 “Akyriobe™, 2,329,316 thousand tenge for works on reconstruction of assembly points of Dozoy UGS and
1,142,400 thousand tenge for construction of gas distribution and compressor siation “Kozhasay ™.

3l



KazrTransGas JSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Consohdated financial statements

8 LOANS TO RELATED PARTY

Asat 31 December 2018 and 2017, loans to related party comprised the following:

In thousands of terge 2018 2017
Financial assets at amortized cost
Interest bearing loans to related parly 155,864,715 133,317 872
Interesl-free loans to related party™ - 74,610,951
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Interest-free Ioans to related parly™ 71,392,215 -
Plus: interest receivable - 1,873,020
Less: discount = (2,244 828)
Less: impairment {938,246) T
226,318,684 207 557,085
Less: cumrent portion (Nate 29) (71,292,215) (72 366,122)
Non-current portion (Note 23) 154,926,469 135,180 963
* The Girowp nitially apedied IFRS . Sec Note 3 amd explanation helow for deails.
Movement of allowance for expecled credit losses was as follows:
In theusands of tenge B Impairment
At 31 December 2017 -
Effect of adoption of IFRS 9 (Note 3) (354,747)
Luafgu i Chyess (583,499)
At 31 December 2018 (938,246)

Interest bearing loans

In September 2017, the Company provided a loan to BShP of 133,716,000 thousand tenge (equivalent 1o
400,000 thousand LIS dollars) with the interest rate of 5.5% per annum (or partial early repayment of the bank loan
obtained by BShF under the loan agreement with China Development Bank, Bank of China Limited and Bank of China
(Hong Kong) Limited. The maturity date of the loan is 31 August 2029,

During 2018, BShP repaid principal and interest of 4,234,049 thousand tenge and 4,251,879 thousand tenge, respectively
(2017: nil).

Interest-free loans

BShl?

During 2018. the Company provided additional on-demand interest-free loan to BShP of 3,260,435 thousand tenge (201 7:
2,467,151 thousand tenge). Before | January 2018, the fair value on initial loans, which are given on an interest-free
basis, is determined by discounting the future cash flows on the loan using a discount rate of 10-16.9% per annum. Under
IFRS 9, the interest-free loans to related party do not meet criteria for amortized costs or FVOCT and measured al FVPL,
The Group assessed the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assel on the basis of the facts and
circumstances that existed at the initial recognition of the financial asset. Due to short-term nature, the carrying value of
interest-free loans to related party approximates its fair value. During 2018, BShP repaid principal of 4,238,929 thousand
tenge (20107 nil).

During 2018, the Company revised expected repayment date of the residual loans provided to BShP, As a result, the
repayment period was extended to 30 March 2019,

KazRosGas LLP

During 2018, the Company provided on-demand interest-free loan to KazRosGas LLP of 7,772,000 thousand tenge. The
fair value of the provided loan, which is given on an interest-free basis, is determined by discounting the future cash ilows
on the loan using a discount rate of 13% per annum. Respective discount on the interest-free loan of 881,951 thousand
tenge was recognized within finance costs (Nore 27). During 2018, KazRosGas LLP fully repaid the principal on the Toan.
During 2018, amortization of the discount on the loan was equal to 881,951 thousand tenge (2017: nil) ftNate 275
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Consolidated financial statements

9. VAT RECOVERABLE AND PREPAID TAXES OTHER THAN INCOME

In thousands of tango 2018 2017
VAT recoverable 108,962,360 64 689,283
Froperty tax 518,921 778,.B67
Other taxes prepaid 77,257 81,585
108,559,538 85,548 705
Less: allowance for non-recoverable VAT (5,998,010) (9.381,491)
103,561,528 56,168,214
Non-current parlion 92,910,112 48,321,910
Gurrent portion 10,651,416 7,846,304
Movements in the allowance for non-recoverable VAT were as follows:
Individually
In thousands of tenge impaired
At 31 December 2016 (9,320,887)
Charge for the year (60,604)
At 31 December 2017 (9,381.491)
Charge for the year [9,962)
Utiised 3,393,443
At 31 December 2018 {5,998,010)
i, BANK DEPOSITS
In thousands of tenge 2018 2017
Tenge bank deposits with maturity of over five years 4,580,294 5,344 568
Tenge bank deposils with maturity of over one year and less than five years 39,843 59,842
Less: allowance for expecied credit losses (8,221) -
Bank deposits, non-current 4,611,816 5,404 411
Tenga bank deposits with maturity of over three months and less than
one year 38,212 148.116
Bank deposits, current 39,212 148,118

As gt 31 December 2018, tenge deposits with maturity over five vears include restricted deposits in Halvk Bank
Kazakhstan JSC and ForteBank JSC of 4,292 582 thousand tenge and 287,712 thousand tenge, correspondingly. The
deposits in Halyk Bank Kazakhstan JS5C were opened as collateral for leans of the Group's employees
(2017: 5.008.579 thousand tenge). The deposit in ForteBank JSC 15 kept in blocked account designated as liquidation
fund per requirements of subsoil use contracts (2017: the deposit was placed in Tsesna Bank JSC of
335,989 thousand tenpe).

As at 31 December 2018, deposits were placed in banks at the interest rates of 1-5% per annum in tenge (2017: 1-15%).

il. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

In thousands of lenge 2018 2017
Deposits in USD 72,613,800 =
Tenge bank accounts 30,336,860 17,812,587
Deposits in tenge 29,876,666 3,802,155
Foreign currency bank accounts 18,281,989 2,258,208
Cash in transit an. 7T 92,085
Cash on hand 4,655 9,844
151,155,747 23,974,879

As at 3] December 2018, deposits were placed in banks al inlerest rales of 7-7.5% per annum in tenge

(2017 7.5%-8.21%) and 2.45% per annum in a foreign currency (2017: nil).
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1. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

As at 531 December 2018, interest rates for cash on the current accounts in banks were U.1-7.5% per annum in tenge

(2017 0 1-%.05%:) and 0. 1% per annum in a foreign currency (2017: 0.195).

12. INVENTORIES

in thousands of tenge _ 2018 2017

Gas inventory (at cost) 57,670,369 15,583,121

Materials and supplies (al lower of cost and nel realizable value) 2,587,290 1,946,595
60,257,659 17.538,716

Materials and supplies mainly include spare parts far maintenance of gas transportation system, methanol and lubricating
malerials to be used in the gas transporiation equipment and the goods for internal use. Gas inventory includes [uel gas

and gas for sale.

1. TRADE ANDOTHER RECEIVABLES

in thousanas of tenge 2018 2017
Trade receivables from third parties 116,078,919 127 455 705
Trade receivables from related parties (Note 23) 13,634,299 38 B45 581
Cther receivables 2,608,508 527 255

132,321,726 166,928 541
Less allowance for expected credil losses (5.437.264) (6,559 803)

126,884,482 160,368,738
Movements in the allowance for expected credit losses were as follows:

Individually
i thousands of tenge impaired
At 31 December 2016 (B,646,732)
Charge for the year (4,628,946)
Foreign currency translation 5402
Liilisad 184 166
Recoverad 4,538,307
At 31 December 2017 (6,558,803
Charge for the year (3,193,009)
Effect of adoption of IFRS 9 [Note 3) (756,354)
Foreign currency translation (401,B32)
Utilised 339,928
Recovered 5,133,808
At 31 December 2018 (5,437,264)
As at 31 December the ageing analysis of trade and other receivables is as follows:
Nﬁ“;rep::: Past due, but not impaired

In thousands of tenge _ Total  impaired  <30days 3060days 60-80days 90-120days <120 days
2018 126,884,462 114,219,182 T.821,178 784,503 1,378,327 266,553 2,304,718
2017 160,368,738 81,225 321 4449145 33339416 15993 D88 B50.B47 14511121




KazTransGas JSC Consolidated financial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

13.  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at 31 December trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

It thousands of lenge 2018 2017

ush 71,147,747 81,605,809

KZT 55,736,715 78,762,929
126,884,462 160,388,738

Trade and other receivables are non-interest bearing.

14.  EQUITY
Total
Commeon shares outstanding (number of shares) share capital
Par value of Par value of Par value of Par value of (in thousands
100 tenge 138 tenge 2,500 tenge 10,000 tenge of tenge
As of 31 December 2018 312,167,670 1 30,976,655 8,396,465 192,623,055
As of 31 December 2017 312,167 870 1 30,976,655 8,395,465 192 623 065

Commeon shares give holders the right to vote on all matters within the competence of the General Shareholders Meeting.
Dividends on common shares are paid at the Shareholder’s discretion. The Group did not distribute any dividends in 2018
and 2017,

Share capital

In 2017, the Group issued 1,296,788 common shares with par value of 10,000 tenge each for the total amount of
12,967,830 thousand tenge related (o the assets previously received as contribution to additional paid-in capital under
trust management agrecments.

Bouk value per share

In thousands tenge - 2018 207

Total assets 1,741,510,695 1,397.343,541
Less. inlangible assels (5.685,763) (4,747 183)
Less: total llabilities (941,016,481) {750,318.252)
Net assets for common shares 794,798,451 642,278,106
Number of common shares 351,540,791 351,540,791
Book value per common share in thousands of tenge 2.261 1.827

In accordance with the decision of the Exchange Board of Kazakhstan Stock Exchange JSC ("KASE™) dated
4 October 2010, the financial staiements shall disclose book value per share (common and preferred) as of the reporting
date, calculated in accordance with the KASE rules.

Enrnings per share

Basic and diluted eamings per share are calculated by dividing net income for the period attributable 10 common
shareholders by the number of shares outstanding during the period.

The following table reflects the income and share data used in the basic earnings per share compurations for the reporting
periods:

In thousands tenge 2018 2017
Net income attributable to shareholder for basic and diluted eamings

per share 155,975,058 74,780,940
Average number of common sharas for basic and diluled earnings psr share 351,540,791 351,324,660
Basic and diluted earnings per share for the period attributable to the

parent (in thousands of tenge) 0.44 0.21
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

14. EQUITY (continued)
Additional paid-in capital

During 2018, the Group received property, plant and equipment represented by gas transportation svstem under trust
management agreement from the Government with the fair value of 4,113,769 thousand tenge art the dare of transfer
(2017 13,188 885 thousand tenge). Trust management agreement is a short-lerm mechanism funclioning until the title
on these assets is transferred to the Company. The Group is a direcl user of these assets; it received all risks and rewards
related to the ownership of this property in accordance with the trust management agreement. Accordingly, the Group
recognised the assets and appropriate increase in additional paid-in capital, which will be reclassified to share capital once
the legal procedures are completed.

During 2018, the Group recognized additional paid-in capital with respect lo discount on loan provided by KazMunayGas
of 1.792.694 thousand tenge (2017: 1,896,346 thousand tenge) (Note [7),

Retained earnings
Constrnction of soctal facility

In accordance with the order of the President of the Republic of Kazakhstan dated 29 Seprember 2018 and based on the
decision of the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan dated 20 December 2018, the Group recognised provision ol
5,700,000 thousand tenge (Nate [8) related to future financing of the construction of social facility in the city of Turkestan
under the social economic development of Turkestan region. The provision was recorded as other ransactions with the
Shareholder through retained earings.

Bunk RBK JSC

In October 2017, the Group identitied the indicators of impairment on deposits and cash on current accounts held with
Bank RBK JSC of 13,927 890 thousand tenge, due to pre-defaulr condition of the bank. Based on the asset coverage ratio,
the Group assessed the recoverable amount of deposits and cash and recognised loss on impairment on financial assets of
3,481,973 thousand tenge (Note 27), As a result, the carrying amount of deposits and cash on current accounts comprised
10,445,917 thousand tenge.

In November 2017, National Bank of the Republic of Kazakhstan jointly with the Government of the Republic of
Kazakhstan and Kazakhmys Corporation LLC (KCC), a third party. signed the framework agreement on improving the
conditions of Bank RBK JSC, On 29 December 2017, the Group's deposits and cash on current accounts held with Bank
RBK JSC with the carrying amount of 10,445,217 thousand tenge were converted to |5 year coupon bonds at par value
of | tenge each bearing 0.01% per annum. KCC guarantees to repay 3,828,907 thousand tenge in 5 (five) years. As a
result, coupon bonds were initially recognised at fair value of 2,078,177 thousand tenge. The fair value is determined by
discounting future cash flows for the guaranteed amount of bonds using a discount rate of 13% and maturity period of
4 (five) years. The difference berween the carrying amount of deposits and cash and the fair value of coupon bonds of
8.307.740 thousand tenge was recognised by the Group as other transactions with the Sharcholder through retained
CArnings.

15, DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the debt securities issued comprised:

2018 2017

Interest In thousands In thousands

in thousands of fenge Issue  Maturity rate USdollar  of tenge US dollar of tenge
KTG bonds 2017 2027 4 375% 750,000,000 288,150,000 780,000,000 249 255 769
KTG Aimak bonds 2015 2025 7 5% - 5,000,000 £ 5,000,000
KTG Aimak bonds 2014 2018 7.5% - - - B.616,746
750,000,000 293,150,000 750,000,000 262,872,515
Plus. nterest payable 3,420,482 3,295,177

Less: unamoartised transaction

COStS {333,994) (272,187}
Less: discount (1,188,908} (1,274,543}

Less  amount due for
seftlement within 12 months

from the repariing date (3,420,482) (11.671.439}
Amounts due for settlemant
after 12 months 291,626,098 252 649,513
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

I5. DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED (continued)

On 26 September 2017, KTG  placed  international coupon  bonds (“Ewoebonds™) for the total amount of
750.000.000 US dollars at par value of 200,000 US dollars each bearing 4.375% per annum. The coupon is paid semi-
annually on 26 March and 26 September till 26 September 2027 with a total period of 10 years. The yield on debt securities
issued was equal Lo 4.4%,

On 27 September 2017, the proceeds on debt securities issued less transaction costs were equal to
253.835.477 thousand tenge (equivalent to 747,278,253 thousand US dollars}).

On 10 May 2017, ICA executed full redemption of Eurobonds of 40,652.220 thousand tenge (equivalent to

127.801.000 US dollars), including accrued interest of 1,295,789 thousand lenge {equivalent to 4,073,657 US dollars).
In 2018, KTG Aimak performed redemption of bonds of 8,616,746 thousand tenge (2017: 12,424 thousand tenge).

16. INTEREST BEARING LOANS

As al 21 December interest bedring loans comprised:

In thausands of lenge 2018 2017
Interest-bearing loans with floating rate 135,475,019 65,371,308
Interest-bearing loans with fixed rate 76,628,611 66,658,955
211,801,630 132,030,263
Flus: interest payable 1,961,450 1,702,189
Less: unamortised transaction costs (1,178,445) (1,105 560)
212,584,635 132 B26.892
Less: amount due for settlement within 12 months from the reporting date (31,105,703) (19,321,945)
Amounts due for settlement after 12 months 181,478,932 113 304 947

Interesi-bearing loans with floating rate

Ewropean Bank for Reconstruction and Develapmen

In accordance with the loan agreement dated 26 May 2016, on 18 June 2018, ICA received additional linancing from
the Guropean Bank for Reconstruction and Development of 4,621,477 thousand tenge for modemization of Bozoy gas
storage facility (2017: 23,254 400 thousand tenge for the purpose of restructuring existing oblipations). 1CA shall repay
this loan in 32 (thirty-two) consecutive equal guarterly instalments commencing on September 2018 with the interest of
3m CPI (Consumer Price Index) plus 3.1 5% per annum.

During 2018, 1CA repaid principal under the loan agreement of 11,657,766 thousand tenge (2017
8.317.269 thousand tenge).

Az at 31 December 2018, ICA has principal payable tv European Bank for Reconstruction and Development under the
above loan agreement of 58,335,019 thousand tenge (2017: 65,371,308 thousand tenge).

The Corparate and Investment Banking Division of Socidté Générale

In accordance with the loan agreement dated 16 April 2018, on 17 May 2018, the Company received a loan from
the Corporate and Investment Banking Division of Société Générale of 65.832.000 thousand tenge (equivalent to
200,000 thousand US dollars) for partial financing of the project “Construction of three compressor stations at
MG “Beineu-Bozoy-Shymkent™ ar the rate of 3 months LIBOR 1+ 1.35% per annum. This loan is pavable by 16 April
2021,

As at31 December 2018, the Company has principal payable to the Corporate and Investment Banking Division ol Société
Genérale under the above loan agreement of 76.840,000 thousand tenge (2017: nil).

Citibank N.A. Jersey Branch

In 2017, the Company received additional short-term financing from Citibank N.A. Jersey Branch of
13,264,400 thousand tenge (equivalent (o 40,000 thousand LS dollars) at the rate of 3 months LIBOR + 2% per annum.
In 2017, the Company fully repaid principal under the loan agreement of 63,367,232 thousand tenge (equivalent to
200,600 thousand US dollars).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

16. INTEREST BEARING LOANS (continued)
Interest-bearing loans with floating rate (continued)

“itshank N.A. Jersey Branch (comtinted)

In 2018, ICA received a short-term loan from Citibank N.A. Jersey Branch of 27172 800 thousand tenge (equivalent to
85,000 rthousand US dollars) at the rate of | month LIBOR 1 2% per annum for the purpose of restructuring existing
obligations (2017: 6,313,600 thousand tenge (equivalent to 20,000 thousand US dollars). In 2018, ICA fully repaid
principal under the loan agreement of 27,804,350 thousand tenge (equivalent to 85,000 thousand US dollars) (2017:
6,429,200 thousand tenge (equivalent to 20,000 thousand US dollars).

Citihank NA (Londorn braech), VT8 Bank and ING Baek (ING-078a AG branch)

In accordance with the loan agreement dated 28 June 2017, on 14 July 2017, the Company received a loan from Citibank
NA (London branch),VTB Bank and ING Bank (ING-DiBa AG branch) of 245,670.000 thousand tenge (equivalent 1o
750,000 thousand LS dollars) at the rate of 3 months LIBOR + 0.875% per annum for a period of six months and with
possibility of prolongation for an additional six months. On 29 September 2017, the Company [ully repaid principal of
255,322,500 thousand tenge (equivalent to 750,000 thousand US dollars).

HSBC Bank Plc

ICA fully repaid principal of 908,895 thousand tenge on 29 March 2017 refated to the loan agreement dated 15 August
2005, Trinkaus & Burkhardt KGAA and CITI Group Global Markets Deutschland AG & COKGAA

Interest-bearing loans with Oxed rate

Eurcpean Bank for Reconstruction and Development

In accordance with the loan agreement dated 24 November 2016, in 2018, KTG Aimak received additional financing
from European Bank for Reconstruction and Development of 1,460,819 thousand tenge at 10.15% per annum with a
maximum loan term of 10 (ten) vears for the project “Modernization of gas pipeline system in Mangystau, Altobe and
Kostanay regions” (2017; 14,202,061 thousand tenge), Tn 2018, KTG Aimak repaid principal under the loan agreement
ol 1,074,083 thousand tenge (2017: nil),

Asat 3] December 2018, KTG Aimak has total principal payable to European Bank for Reconstruction and Development
under the above loan agreement of 16,111.241 thousand tenge (as at 31 December 2017: 15,724,505 thousand tenge).

Development Bank of Kazakhstan

KTG Aimak concluded several revelving credit line agreements with the Development Bank of Kazakhstan for the
projects *Modernization of gas pipeline svstem in South Kazakhstan, Turaz, Kyzylorda, Aktobe™ and “Construction of
stand-by line of gas pipeline Uzen-Zhetybai”, During 2018. KTG Aimak received additional financing of
15,932,821 thousand lenge (2017: 15,747,578 thousand tenge) under the loan agreement. During 2018, KTG Aimak
repaid principal o 6,351,901 thousand tenge (201 7: 3 440,464 thousand tenge).

As al 31 December 2018, KTG Aimak has total principal payable to Development Bank of Kuazakhstan JSC under the
above loan agreements of 32 815370 thousand tenge (as at 31 December 2017: 43,234,450 thousand tenge).

Ewravian Development Bank

In 2016, KTG Aimak raised funds by concluding non-revolving credit line agreement dated 15 November 2016 for the
amount of 7,676,900 thousand tenge at 11.00% per annum for the preject “Modernization of gas distribution system in
Aktobe region”. The principal amount is payable starting from May 2019,

As at 31 December 2018, KTG Aimak has total principal pavable to Eurasian Development Bank 1SC under the above
loan agreement of 7,700,000 thousand tenge (2017: 7,700,000 thousand tenge).

K TG acts as a guarantor under the loan agreements with Development Bank of Kazakhstan, Furasian Development Bank,
European Bank for Reconstruetion and Developmeni.

Covenants

Under the terms of bank loans, the Group is obliged to comply with certain covenants. The Group reviews compliance
with loan covenants at each reporting date. Failure to comply with financial covenants gives the lenders the right to
demand carly repayment of loans.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

17.  LOANS FROM RELATED PARTY

As at 31 December loans from related parties comprised:

in thousands of fenge 2018 2017
Fixed interest rate borrowings 40,203,887 57,278,925
40,203,697 57,278 925
Flus: interast payable 1,220,637 1,383,013
Less: discount (5.320.184) (5,920,087)
36,104,060 52,721,841
Less: amount due for settlement within 12 months from the reporting date {26,198,509) (43,386,615)
Amounts due after 12 months 9,905,541 9,335,226

Fixed interest rale borrowings

Omn 6 March 2017, KazMunayGas provided to the Group short-term financing 0f 25,321,800 thousand tenge at the rate of
5.0% per annum for general corporale purposes. This loan is payable on 6 March 2018, During 2018, the repayment
period of the principal was extended until 6 March 2019, Respective discount on the loan of 1,792,694 thousand tenge
was recognized as additional paid-in capital (2017: 1.896.346 thousand tenge) (Nore [4).

On 31 May 2013. KazMunayGas provided to the Group long-term financing of 458,728 thousand tenge at 5% per annum
for the purpose of financing the construction of the *West-North-Center” trunk gas pipeline. This loan is payable by
31 May 2018. During 2018, the loan was fully repaid.

On 10 December 2015, KazMunayGas provided to the Group long-term loan of 123,648,000 thousand tenge (equivalent
10 400,000 thousand US dollars) tw finance repayment of the loan from Syndicate of international banks. The loan has
maturity of 36 months and bears interest at the rate of 2.88% per annum. In 2018, the Group fully repaid principal under
the loan agreement of 18,524,500 thousand tenge (2017: 116,987,500 thousand tenge).

Interest-free borrowings

In 2015, KazMunayGas provided to the Group interesi-lree loan of 23,321,800 thousand tenge for the purpose of
financing the construction of the Beineu-Shymkent trunk gas pipeline through the provision of short-term loans to BShP.
In the 2017, the loan was fully repaid.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

I8. PROVISIONS

Gas pipelina
Provision Abandonment abandonment
for gas and site and site
transportation restoration restoration Tax Dther
in thousands of tenge BXpENses provision provision provisions provisions Total
As at 31 Decembear
20186 24,361 458 3,586,506 44 517 658 1,622,987 - 74,358 6850
Arnsing during the year = 99,757 = - 304 229 403,986
Foreign exchange gain (70,170) = = = = (T0,170)
Change in estmates
(Nafe 4) = (2.026,005) 555,667 3 = (1,480 338)
Unwinding of discount - 222333 4719004 = = 4 941 334
Recovered = = L (545 384) = (545 384)
Utilised - = - {(1.276,832) {BE, 890) {1,343 723}
At 31 December 2017 24,291,288 1,882 591 49 792 367 100,771 237,339 76,304 356
Arising during the year = = - 196,074 10,596,800 10,791,874
Forelgn exchange loss 3,701,378 - - = = 3,791,379
Change in estimates
(Note 4) = {124,482) 3 874,683 = = 3,750,201
Unwinding of discount - 146 713 5171,237 = = 5,316,950
Recovered & = - (22.242) - {22,242)
Utilised ) = 2 > (142,515) {4,442,813) (4,585,428)
At 31 December 2018 28,082,667 1,903 822 58 838,287 131,088 6,391,226 95,347,080

Current provisions

as at 31 December

2018 28,082 667 = = 131,088 6,368,635 34,582,380
Man-current provisions

as at 31 December

2018 53 1.903,822 58,838,287 - 22,591 60,764,700
Current provisions

as at 31 Dacember

2017 24 291 768 - - 100,771 237,339 24,629,208

Non-current provisions
as at 31 December
2017 =] 1,862 581 48,782 367 = = 51.674.,958

Provision for gas transportation expenses

As at 31 December 2018, provision for gas transportation expenses represents provision for reimbursement of expenses
associated with transportation of borrowed gas to PetroChina International Co. Lid. of USD 72,094 thousand (equivalent
to 28,082 667 thousand tenge) (2017: USD 73,094 thousand (equivalent to 24,291,288 thousand tenge) under the gas
borrowing agreement (Nore 30).

In 2018 foreign exchange difference on the provisions of 3,791,379 thousand tenge was recognized wilh in toreign
exchange loss (2017: foreign exchange gain of 70,170 thousand tenge).

Gas pipeline abandonment and site restoration provision

The Group®s subsidiaries ICA and KTG Aimak recorded a provision for future costs of decommissioning of main gas
pipelines on a discounted basis in accordance with the Law of the Republic of Kazakhstan On Main Pipelines (Note 2).
As at 31 December 2018, provision for abandonment of gas pipelines and site rehabilitation in the amount of
58,838,287 thousand tenge (2017: 49,792 367 thousand tenge) represents the current costs of abandonment of gas
pipelines and site rehabilitation expected to be incurred from 2021 ll 2084,

Other

During 2018, the Group sold 415,777 thousand cubic meters of gas in excess of the volume of gas stored by the Group in
Bozoy underground storage facility. As a result of the excess usage the Group accrued a provision to fill the storage with
was for the tolal amount of 4,417,285 thousand tenge. In 2018, the Group retrned 415.777 thousand cubic meters of pas
1o Bozoy underground storage facility and decreased the respective provision,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

18. PROVISIONS {continued)

Other (continued)

As of 31 December 2018, the Group recognised provision of 5,700,000 thousand tenge (Nere [4) related w0 Tuture

financing of the construction of social facility in the city of Turkestan.

19. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

I thousands tenge 2018 2097
Defarred income: non-current portion 8,111,632 8,308 872
Cther - 18.8656
B,111,532 8,327 738
20. TRADE ANDOTHER PAYABLES
In thousands of tenge 2018 2017
Due to related parties (Note 29) 119,222,945 110,915,218
Due to third parties 30,152,907 38,194 196
209,375,852 149,109 414

I'tade and other pavables represent amounts due for the purchased gas, assets and services. Trade payables are non-interest

bearing, usually settled within 30 days.

As at 31 December trade and other payables are denominated in the following currencies:

In thausands of lenge 2018 2017
KZT 178,443,065 134,038,495
usD 19,263,810 12,208,651
RUR 11,651,821 2,849,630
Other 17,156 12,638
209,375,852 149 109 414
21. CONTRACT LIABILITIES
In thausands of tenge B 2018 2017
Contract liabilities to third parties 4,638,725 3.928 357
Contract liabilities to related parties (Note 29) 4. 427 544 1,707 634
9 066,269 5,635 931

& Camrace Nabitivies wers previowsy prasenied s gdvences recerved m the consolidated stareiment of financial positian of the Cirongt as af 31

Drecember X017 See Note 3 for delutis

22. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

In thousands of tenge 2018 2017
(Gas borrowing 5,611,326 4 853,760
Accruad honuses 4,437 577 4,904 383
Payables to pension and social insurance funds 932,676 772,640
Deferred income: current portion 474,928 451,012
Other payments to the budget - 944 B55
Other 1,610,320 1.075 444
- 13,066,827 13,012,103

As at 31 December 2018, the Group recognised gas borrowing liability to return 104,323 thousand cubic meiers of natural
gas borrowed from PetroChina International Company Limited (2017: 104,323 thousand cubic meters).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

23.  REVENUE

Timing of revenue

i thousands of tenge recognition 2018 2017
Type of goods or services
Revenue from sales of gas Over time 771,410,192 391,510,313
Revenue from gas transportation
sarvices Over time 140,431 452 165,584,118
Revenue from technical
maintenance of gas pipelines Over time 8,281,270 4. 369,653
Management fee Al a point in time - 29,310,861
Other Owver time 1,076,686 581,826
921,179,600 581,756,771
Geographical markets
Kazakhstan 321,347,343 330,025,999
China 400,434,282 50,489,321
cls 199,397,965 192,241,451
821,179,600 581,756,771
24, COST OF SALES
In thausands of lengs 2018 2017
Cosl of gas sold 316,995,801 234,538,355
Transportation expenses 223177,683 93,658,724
Payrall and related contributions 43,108,857 35,448 901
Depreciation and amortization 313 888 466 20,081,227
Modification of payment terms on financial instrument 16,741,793 -
Fuel gas and gas losses 12,920,982 14,214 718
Taxes other than income tax 9,826,130 8 685 460
Billing services 5,793,250 5,331,987
Repair and maintenance 4,038,931 4,000,465
Security 2,700,726 2,400,743
Electricity 2,262,522 2,076,504
Business trip expenses 1,180,688 1,028,577
Materials and supplias 1,061,752 B4T 423
Communication expenseas 926,034 551,148
Insurance 578,802 543738
Other 2,901,812 2,387,234
678,104,234 434 793 202
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

25. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPPENSES

In thousands of lenge D 2018 0000 2017
Payroll and related confributions 12,558,245 12,048,291
Taxes other than income tax 3511654 1,242 BAB
Rent expenses 2,569,819 2,520,874
Consulting services 1,987,165 1,348,249
Depreciation and amortization 1,384,635 1,354,094
Personnel development and qualification upgrade 588,895 514,045
Repair and maintenance 557 411 417,081
Business trip expenses 448,787 401,230
Office maintenance expenses 385,128 508.877
Fines and penallies 373,657 {3,008,513)
Communication services 187,788 137.026
Tax provision, net 182,794 (484,780)
Bank charges 169,664 334,845
Festive and cultural events expenses 120,959 75,338
Security costs 103,685 121,792
Insurance 26,980 29,0904
Provisian for doubtful debts, net® = 109,508
Write-down of inventory lo nel realisable value {207,207) 885,540
Other payments 1o the budget (844,855) B44 B55
Other S 2,148,285 1851,184
26,153,670 21,454 044

The Group fas aniticlly applied WERS 3 Faancral nstruments Allawance for expected credi losses far 2008 was presesived separately in the
consolidated statenient of comprehensive income. See Note 3 for detarls.

26. OTHER OPERATING INCOME/{EXPENSES})
in thoisands of terige 2018 2017

Other operating income
Income from services rendered (gas supply to residential buildings, hook-up,

technical maintenance) 3,201,428 3363611
Income from fines 520,086 571,388
Amarization of deferred income 464,056 403,770
Income from sale of invenlories 220,623 439,559
Other 361,517 285,865

4,767,720 5064,173
Other operating expenses
VAT expense under Trust management agreement (4,389 531) {4,842 850)
Provision for impairment of property, plant and equipment and exploration

and evaluation assels (Noftes 4 and 5) (4,090,745) (326,708)
Expanses on services rendered (gas supply to residential buildings, hook-up.

technical maintenance) (2,481,640) (2,438.263)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipmenl, intangible assets and

exploration and evaluation assets {3,053,394) (771,857)
Depreciation and amortization {15,273) (21,404)
Other (583,4B1) (69.552)

{14,604,064) (8,460,431)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

27. FINANCE INCOME AND FINANCE COSTS
In thousands of tenge 2018 2017

Finance income

Interest income an loans to related party 8,049,503 2,271,005
Interes! income an bank deposits 3,277,707 5220378
Amartization of financial guarantee obligations 1,187,311 -
Amaortization of discount on the loans issued to related pariy (NMote 8) 881,951 5,670,834
OHher income fram financial assets 420,186 -
Other B7 941 367,760
13,684,599 14,530,067
Finance costs
Interest on bank loans and overdrafls (13,671,155) 19,111,632)
Interest on debt secunties issued {12,374, 180) (4,836 628)
Unwinding of discount on abandonment and site restoration provision (5,316,950) (4,941,334)
Unwinding of discount on financial liabilities (2,392,607) (2,650, 78%)
Interest on loans from related party (2,350,231) (4,681 800)
Discount on interest-free loans to related parties (Nofe 8) (881,951) -
Amortization of capitalized costs related to loan arrangement (762,684) (1,642 450}
Amortization of discount on debt securities issued (159,177) (118,850)
Discounl on interest free loans to the joint venturs - (3,683,280)
Loss on impairment of financial asset (Nota 74) - (3,481,973)
Financlal guarantea obligations lo the joint venture = (1,070.133)
Other (1,068,458) (705,598)
(3B,977,393) {36,924 516)

28. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

The Group is subject to corporate income tax at the prevailing siatulory rate of 20%

fn thousands of tenge 2018 2017
Current income tax expense 31,686,027 21,818 456
Deferred income tax expense 14,743,299 2,691,897
Adjustment of prior year income tax s 1,235,962 188,897
47 665,288 24 678,324
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Consolidated Mnancial statements

28. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

A reconciliation of corporate income tax expenses applicable (o profit before taxation at the official income 1ax rate, with
the current income tax expense reported in the IFRS financial statemenis for the years ended 3| December is as follows:

in thousands of tenge 2018 2017
Profit before income tax 203,640,346 99 459 264
Statulory tax rate - 20% 20%
Theoretical income tax expense 40,723,069 16,891,853
Tax effect of permanent differences
Mon-deductible foreign exchange differences, net 2,905,958 -
Non-deductible expenses related to siorage of gas 1.079.672 -
Change in provision for defarred tax assets 1,084,618 -
Gratuitous transfer of the Training Centre building 542,894 -
{Reversalj/accrual of tax provision {1.015,600) 1,003,479
Unwinding of discount - historical costs and assets abandonment liabilities 1,063,390 €98,108
VAT expensa under Trust management agresment 873,906 ©68 570
Non-deductible loss on impairment of financial asset = £06,395
Unwinding of discount on financial liahilities 478,621 530,158
Financial guarantee obligations to the joint venture - 214,027
Adjustments with respect lo current income tax of prior year 1,235,962 166,897
Share in (ncome)loss of joint veniures recogmsed (3,349.786) 126.678
Provision for imgairment of property, plant and equipment and exploration

and evaluation assels 818,149 55,341
Adjustments with respect 1o defarred income tax of prior year - (257 B4S5)
Amortization of discount an loans iIssued to related parties - (597 509)
Non-deductible fines and penalties - (601.303)
Other B 1,219,544 1,473,475

47,665,288 24 678,324

'I_'_ai?_g_ﬂgﬁ! racognizad in mher"@mprahensiﬂ_lmg_ {52,242} 154.480)
Income tax expenses reported in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income 47,613,046 24,613,844

45



of

(868" OP6 FE) 08y ¥9 (126" 1BE'T) (88EFLG'LT) 206'52% £8F or6'eL) THT'LE {e62'crl'vL) lovs'ece'Ls) sapy|igel
Xe] paujap 1aN
(Ep0'geL'BE) 08y o (BpO2r0 ') ZIZOLLIR - [ZIZ0LE 1) - {1ee'ig0'vL] {eve'zeL'1a)
060’8 L) 08y g {oEt'Es] {96050 1] - [oR0 5al) - (zag'veZ) (BSL'BEE] EETIGT]
WaLINI-UoU S0
- - - = - - - {1an'zie's) (1eo'zia's) EEBlHEEINT]
(coR'cag 'BE) = (es1'6v8'L) (01 L'5kS' L) - (Bl ewe' L) - {829'086'9) (r0L'525'¥5) R

ajg/Buelui pue uawdinba
pue juzd ‘Apadoly
S 1qer) xey pauaiag

GvLGELY - 8/3°05€'S €ZRSEL 0L 906'529 624 L9LD! THe'es (296559} £00'8S1'01

(zog'prb'c) - P! (Bze'DEr's) - (gee’cEr's) - (819'¥20'1) {oer'si5al dnoug sy

J0 S)assE XB] paLAap
10§ umisiaoad S5E

L00'DEE'0L = v.vm_wm.mm LGRBEE 5L mﬁmlmwm mmm .m.w_. ‘O TFT'ES asa'ert BrF'ELo'al

0Z0'ad2'L = BESFES L BO9'0LE'Z (egc's0L) S22 L0L'E Tre'es (g50'902'z) T LFS B0
920°F0E' L - Qac'ele ZBe'czL'L bzl s | = (6£L'6Z) EF0'FES‘L BlICIU| palleis]

- - vELLLYZ PBLLIP'T - P62 LLF'E - £L0'758'} LT R T wsweeube Juawebieusw
15T} JEpUN $507
BEO'SOE'Z = Or6 +RE BE0'0BLE - GEO'OGL'E - (6ar'czs) 025'992'z suaisineid sayio

Zoa'rbr'S = (Feo'wL) FER0EF'S = BEZ80L¥F'S - SiZ'BSL ECL'GEL'S £25UBCX8 UOEHODSUED
g0 J0) UDISINGIH

= o - - gZeece 0f2'eLe - gaL'i18 SEE'6EL L £50| UpaD
pajoadys 10) SoUBME||Y

- = = - BRO'EIS 6R0ELS - - 690°CLS aaque.ent [epueuy
uo sesuadxs eoueLiH
sjesse XE) pesiejeg
oL0Z EHLLODU S80| puUE AL0E (c 2IoN) B gLoz awoaul se0| puelyosd  gLoz abiuaj o spUesnNoY; U]

sASUsya-dwos  youd o) pehieyn Su4l 4o uopdope  Auenuer | 1g sy anISuMY o} pebueyn
18yjo 0] paliuey ] jo Pay3 -duisod s
o) pafaeyn

'SM0[[0] SB 1B S3IQE]] PUR SI9SSE XB) JW00U| PALIAP 10 SIEauodwios '/ [ 67 PUB 8 (7 Joquanag 1€ 18 sy
(panunuod) SISNILIXT XVLAWOOINI 87

(penupuod) SINAWALY.LS TVIINVNLA GALYAI'TOSNOD THL OL STLON

SIUSWPEYS [BIDUBLL PAABPIOSUC]) DS sensuel jzey



KazTransGas JsC Consolidated (nancial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

28,  INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are related to various entities of the Group and may not be offset against vach
other in accordance with the tax legislation, Net deferred tax position of the Group entities is as follows:

In thousands of fenge 2018 2007

Deferrad tax assels 189,372 3827073
Deferrad tax liabilities (51,628,812} [41,101,462)
MNet deferred tax liabilities as at 31 December (51,6838,540) (37,674,389)

29, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties include key management personnel of the Grroup, entities in which a substantial interest is owned, directly
or indirectly, by the Group's key management personnel. KazMunayGas Group companies {entities under common
control), joint ventures, in which the Parent is a venturer and entities controlled by Samruk-Kazyna and the Governmentl
(other state-controlled entities).

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Related party transactions were made on lerms agreed to between the parties that may not necessarily be at market rates,
except for services on gas transportation, which are provided based on the tarifis available to the third partics. Ouistanding
halances at the vear-end are unsceured, non-interest bearing and seltlerment occurs in cash, except as indicaled below. For
the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group did not recognize any impairment of receivables relating 1o
amounts owed by related parties.

The major transactions with related parties for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 were as follaws:

in thousands of tenge 2018 2017

Sales of goods and services

Entities undar common control of KazMunayGas 1,112,882 1.0497 881
Joint ventures in which the Group s a venturer 7,278,535 3815045
Joint ventures in which the Parent is a venturer 46,096,516 62,053,588
Entities under common cantrol of Samruk-Kazyna and the Govemnment 47,865,655 51,264,186
102,353,568 118,230,710

Management fee
Entitiss under common control of Samruk-Kazyna and the Gowvernment ¥ ~ 29,310.861
= 29,310 &1

Purchases of goods and services

Entities under common control of KazlunayGas 6,220,039 5,484,950
Jnint ventures in which the Group is a venturer 219,439,649 91,632,683
Joint ventures n which the Parant is a venturer 88,712,444 37 685,020
Entities under eommen conlrol of Samruk-Kazyna and the Governmeni 2,649,364 740,102

316,921,498 135,542,770

VAT expense under the Trust management agreament
Entities under comman cantrol of Samruk-Kezyna and the Government 4,369,531 4 842 BSD
4,369,531 4 842 850

Finance income

Joint ventures in which the Group is a veniurer 9,221,801 5,285 572
Joint ventures in which Parent is a venturer ! _ 881,851 =
10,103,762 9,285,572

Finance costs

Jaint ventures in which the Group 15 @ venturer 80,486 8263

Joint vantures n which Parent is a venlurar 881,951 E

Entities under cormmaon control of Samruk-Kazyna and the Governmeant 4,742,838 7,338,998
85,705,275 7,347 261
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KazTransGas JSC Consolidated hinancial stalements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties (continued)

It thousands of lenge 2018 2017

Trade receivahles

Enfities under cormmon control of KazMunayGas 7,331 21,187

Joint vertures in which the Group is a venturer 5,660,236 2,938,635

Jaint ventures in which the Parent is a venturer 1,670,373 14,412,035

Entities under common control of Samruk-Kazyna and the Government 5,296,359 21,473,724

13,634,299 38,845,581

Loans to related party

Joint ventures in which the Group ig a ventursr 226,318,684 207,567,085
226,318,684 207,557,085

Advances paid

Entities under gcommeon control of KazMunayGas 2410 15,628
Jonl ventures in which the Parant is a venturar - 1,927 636
Entities under camman sontral of Samnuk-Kazyna and the Government - 1,506,368 5.294
1,508,778 1,048,558
Trade and other payables
Entities under common control of KazMunayGas 1,008,156 567,797
Joint ventures in which the Group s a venturer 63,026,882 82,274,930
Joint ventures in which the Parent is a venturer 54,393,498 28,049,081
Entitins undér common contrel of Samruk-Kazyna and the Government 794 408 23430
119,222,945 110915218
Contractual liabilities
Entities under common control of KazMunayGas 116,170 16,479
Joint ventures in which the Group (s a venturer "7 -
Joint ventures in which the Parent is a venturer 4,285,355 1.671.387
Entities under commen control of Samruk-Kazyna and the Government 25,802 17,768
4 427,544 1,707 634
Loans
Entities under common control of Samruk-Kazypa and the Government e 89,501,116 96,514 183
B8 501,118 896,514 183
Other financial liabilitles
Joint ventures in which the Group is a venturer 848,875 1794886
B48,8975 1,794 886

In 2018. the Company provided additional interest-free loan to BShP of 3.260.435 thousand tenge (2017
2,467,151 thousand tenge) for the construction of the Beineu-Shymkent trunk gas pipeline and for general corparate
purposes. During 2018, BShP repaid principal under the loan agreement of 4,238,929 thousand tenge (2017: nil).

During 2018, BShP repaid principal and interest under the loan agreement of 4,284,049 thousand tenge and
4,251,879 thousand tenge, respectively (2017: nil).

During 2018, the Company provided interest-free loan to KazRosGas LLP of 7,772,000 thousand tenge for general
corporate purposes. In 2018, KuzRosGas LLP fully repaid principal under the loan agreement.

During 2018, the Group repaid principal and interest under the loan agreements of 18983228 thousand tenge and
2,397.859 thousand tenge to KazMunayGas (2017: principal of 142,309,300 thousand tenge and interest of
3,773,286 thousand tenge),

In 2017, the Company issued financial guarantee to BShP under the shareholder suppart agreement dated 7 September
2017 for BShP to comply with the payment obligations to China Development Bank, Bank of China Limited and Bank
of China (Hong Kong) Limited for the period until the date of completion Beineu-Shymkent gas pipeline project on
30 September 2019. Under the terms of the credit line agreement between BShP and China Development Bank. Bank of
China Limited and Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited. the principal amount is pavable in quarterly installments starting
from December 2017 to March 2028. As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of the Company’s financial guarantee
obligation was 848,975 thousand tenge (2017: 1.794 886 thousand tenge).
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KazTransGas JSC Consolidated financial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

29.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Compensation fo key management personnel

Key management personnel comprise members of the Management Board and independent directors of the Company,
totaling 9 persons as at 31 December 2018 (as at 31 December 201: 9 persons), In 2018 and 2017 total amount of
compensation lo key managemeni was equal to 453,277 thousand tenge and 404,184 thousand tenge, respectively.
consisting mainly of salaries and other payments and was included in general and administrative expenses in the siatement
of comprehensive income.

J0. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Operating environment

Kazakhstan continues economic reforms and development of its legal, tax and regulatory frameworks as required by a
market economy. The future stability of the Kazakhstan economy is largely dependent upon these reforms and
developments and the effectiveness of economic, financial and monetary measures undertaken by the government,

Commitments for capital expenditures

As al 31 December 2018, the Group has capital commitments of approximately 30,503,902 thousand tenge, excluding
VAT (2017: 15,813,613 thousand tenge, excluding VAT), related to acquisition and construction of property, plant and
equipment. These capital commitments are in part related to investment program described in Nete ! “Corporate
information™.

Commitments of AGP and BShP

The Company's share in the commimments for capital expenditures of AGP and BShP is as follow as at
31 December 2018:

Ini thousands of fenge 20138 2007
AGP 2,965,114 11,735,079
BShP 16,704,585 0,526 147
Taxation

Kazakhstan's tax legislation and regulations are subject to ongoing changes and varying interpretations. Instances of
inconsistent opinions between local, regional and national tax authorities are not unusual, including opinions with respect
to [FRS reatment of revenues, expenses and other items in the financial statements. The current regime of penalties and
interest related to reported and discovered violations of Kazakhstan’s tax laws are severe. Fiscul periods remain open 1o
review by the authorities in respect of taxes for 5 (five) calendar vears preceding the vear of review. Under certain
circumstances reviews may cover longer periods.

Transfer pricing control

Trunsfer pricing control in Kazakhstan has a very wide scope and applics to many transactions that dircctly or indirectly
relate to international business regardless of whether the transaction participants are related or not. The transfer pricing
legislation requires that all taxes applicable to a transaction should be calculated based on market prices determined as
per the arm’s length principle.

The new law on transfer pricing came into effect in Kazakhstan [rom | January 2009. The law is not explicit and there is
little precedence with some of its provisions, Moreover, the law is nol supported by detailed guidance, which is still under
development. As a result, application of transfer pricing law to various types of transactions is not clearly defined.

Due to uncertainties associated with the Kazakhstani law on transter pricing there is a risk that the tax authorities may
take a position on this issue different from that of the Group. which may result in assessment of additional taxes, lines
and penalties as of 31 December 2018, The management believes that its interpretation of the transfer pricing legislation
is appropriate and that it is probable that the Group’s positions with regard to transfer pricing will be sustained.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

M. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

Environmental maiters

The Group is subject 1o various environmental laws and regulations. Managemem believes that the Group complies with
requirements of the legislation related to environmental matters.

Legal issues and claim

In the ordinary course of business, the Group is subject w legal actions and complaints. Management belicves, that
the ultimate liability, if any, arsing from such actions or complaints will not have a material adverse effect on
the consolidated financial position or the financial results of future operations of the Group.

Imsurance matters

The insurance industry in the Republic of Kazakhstan is in a developing state and many forms of insurance protection
commeon in other parts of the world are not yet available in the Republic of Kazakhstan. The Group does not have coverage
for its plant facilities, business interruption. or third party liability in respect of property or environmental damage arising
from accidents on the Group property or relating to the Group operations. Until the Group obtains adequate insurance
covergge, there is a risk that the loss or destruction of certain assets could have a material adverse effect on
the consolidated financial performance of the Group and its consolidated financial position,

Commitments under subsoil use contract

In accordance with the terms of subsoil use contract, Amangeldy LLP bhas conditional commitment to the Gavernment in
the amount of 10,527,586 US dollars related to the cost of acquisition of geological and geophysical data and drilling
casts incurred by the Government, This long-term commitment enters in force after confirmation of commercial discovery
of pas at the Kumyrly-Kosmudyk, Anabay-Maldybai, Barkhannaya-Sultankudyk, Ucharal-Ucharal North and
Kempirtohe fields.

According to the subsurface use contract, Amangeldy LLF is required to comply with minimal working program. As of
31 December 200 8 and 2017, Amangeldy LLP complied with the minimal working program.

Obligation te maintain minimum level of bank deposit for KazRosGas LLP

As at 31 December 2018, KazRosGaz LLP has an obligation to maimain minimum level of bank deposit in the Bank
RBEK JSC bank of 51,262 thousand US dollars (equivalent to 19,694,860 thousand tenge) ll 28 December 2019,
KazRosGas LLP has the right to withdraw part or entire deposit with the approval of the Company. In case of such
withdrawal by KazRosGas LLP, the Company has to place the deposit in the Bank RBK JSC for the same minimum
amount. The Company does not expect any withdrawal of deposit by KazRosGas LLP.

Payment for transporlation services on “Ship or Pay” terms

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has an obligation under the transportation services agreement with BShP to provide
minimum annual volume of gas of 3.5 billion cubic meters for transpertation. In case the aclual volume of transported
zas is less than 3.5 billion cubic meters, the Compuny obliged to compensate BShP for the undersupplied gas, whereby
the fee to be paid by the Company equals the price of transportation services 1o lransport 3.5 billion cubic meters of gas.
In 2018, the Group fulfilled its obligation and provided annual volume of gas of 8.3 billion cubic meters for transportation.
The Company does not expect undersupply.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's principal financial liabilities comprise interest-bearing loans, loans from related parties, debt sceurities
issued, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group’s operations,
The Group has interesi-free loans o related party. trade and other receivables, restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents
and bank depesits, which arise directly from its operations.

The Group 1s exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group's management oversees the management of these risks. The Group's management is supported by department
of internal controls and risk management that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financigl risk governance
framework for the Group. The department of internal controls and risk management provides assurance to the Group's
management that the Group's linancial risk-taking activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures.

Markel risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial mstrument will fluctuare because of changes
in market interest rates. Market prices include two types ot risks: interest rate risk and currency risk. Financial instruments
affected by market risk include borrowings and deposits.

The Group has no formal agreements for the analysis and mitigation of risks related to changes in interest rates, since
management assesses the risk as low,

The sensitivily analysis in the section below relates o positions as at 31 December 2018 and 2017,

The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt and the proportion of financial
instruments in foreign currencies are all constant.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will Tuctuare because of

changes in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to
the Group's borrowings with floating interest rates,

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates {Libor and CPI), with
all other variahles held constant, of the Group®s (loss)/profit before income tax (through the impact on floating rate
borrowings). There is no impact on the Group's equity.

Increase/ Effect on profit

decreass bafore

In thousands of tenge inbasispoints =~ incoma tax
2018

Libor +0.5% (384,200)
CPI +1% (495,969)
Libor -0.15% 115,260
CPI -1% 495,969
2017

cPl +1% 811,238
cPI 1% (611,238)

Assumptions of changes in basis points within analysis of sensitivity to interest rate changes are based on a currently
observable markel situation.

Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash Mows of a finaneial instrument will Muetuate because of
forcign exchange rates changes. As a result of significant borrowings and accounts payable denominated in the US dollar,
the Group’s conselidated statement of financial position can be affected significantly by movement in the US dollartenge
exchange rates. The financial and economic activities also have transactional currency exposures. Such exposure arises
from revenue in US dollar.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk {continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the US dollar, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group's profit before income tax, There is no impact on the Group’s equity.

Increase/ Effect on profit

decrease before
Int thousands of lange in the rate income tax
2018
US dollar +14% (35,679,460)
-“10% 25,485,329
2017
US dollar +10% {18,008 756)
-10% 18.008,756
incraasel Effect on profit
decrease before
In thousands of lenge ~ Intherate income tax
2018
Ruble +14% (1,630,424}
9% 1.048,130
207
Ruble = <
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party with financial instrument will not be able to fulfil an abligation and cause the other
party to incur a financial loss. The Group is exposed to a credit risk from its operating activities and certain lypes of
investing activities. With regard to investing activities, the Group places deposits with Kazakhstani banks, The Group’s
management reviews credit tatings of these banks periodically ro eliminate extraordinary credil risk exposure.
The Group's managemeni believes that recent international credit crisis and subsequent changes in credit rating of local
banks does not justify extraordinary credit risk. Accordingly, no impairment allowance against bank deposits is required.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Jl.  FINANCIAL

POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

INSTHUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIECTIVES AND

The table below shows the balances of cash and deposits in banks at the reporting date using Standard & Poor’s and Fitch

Ratings credit rating symbols,

In thousands af lenge Location 2018 2017 2018 207
Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Lid  England Standard & AJpositive - -
{London Branch) Poor's 72,613,800 -
Halvk Bank of Kezakhstan ST Kazakhstan Stendard & BBistabhle  Standard & BB/stable
Poor's Poor's 69,039,849 26,920,113
Citl Bank Kazakhztan JSC Kazakhstan  Moody's Ajstable/P-1 Moody's Adstabla/P-1 6,869,142 B09 631
GazFromBank JSC Russia Standard &8 BB+/stable Standard&  BB+/slable
Poor's Poor's 6,588,155 7O
ForteBank JSC Kazskhslan Standard & Bllpositive Standard& — B3/positive
Poor's Poor's 358,778 57,040
Allyn Bank JSC Kazakhstan  Moody's Batistable Moody's BazZfslahla 177,138 E48 (18
Dewsche Bank Garmany Standard & BBB+/stable Moody's Adlstable
Poor's 105,655 24,078
ATF Bank JSC Kazakhslan Standard & Binegative o o
Poor's 852 -
Central Depository of Kazakhstan  Thomas  A+/positive/&  Thomas  A+ipositive/a
Securities J5C Murray Murray 474 25,345
Kazkommertsbhank JSC Kazakhslan Standard & BB/stable/B  Standard &  B/fpositive
Poor's FPoor's B35 75110
SB Bank of China Kazakhstan Standard & Alstable Standard & A+lstable
Poor's Foor's 82 100
Bank GenterSredit JSG Kazskhslan Standard & Bistablel  Filch Ratings Brstabla
Poor's k}: | 21
Citibank N.A. London England Standard &  Atfstable Stardard & At/stable
Poor's Peor's 19 80
Kaspi Bank JSC Fazekhslan Standard & BE-fstable = =
Poor's 17 -
EBank RBE JSC Kazgkhslan Standard & B-istable Slandard & CcCC
Poor's Poor's (developing) 10 10
Sherbank JEC Kazakhstan  Moody's Ba2istable Moody's BEaZfsiable 12 5,502
Development Bank of Kazekhstan = = Stardard &  BBwsiable
Kazakhstan JSO Poors = 454 745
Tsesna Bank JST Kazakhstan = = Filch Rabings Brstable 335088
Qazag Bank JSC Kazakhstan - = Stardard &  B/stabla/C
Poor's - 70,625
Eurasian Bank JSC Kazakhstan = s Standard & Binegative
Poor's - 39,843
Bank of China Hang Keng —= = Standard & At /stable
Pooi's v &80
155,753,604 29425477

At the level of operations, management believes that the Group established apprapriate eredit verification procedures and
monitoring of trade customers, which enabled the Group to trade only with recognized, creditworthy third parties.
The Group monitors the outstanding receivables on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group’s exposure to bad
debis is not significant. Credit risks are taken through individual impairments. Concentration of credit risks mainly relates
to the key accounts, in particular, to intemational customers.,

With respect Lo credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Group. which comprise cash and cash equivalents,
bank deposits, other non-current financial assets, loans to related party, other receivables and financial guarantee
obligations, the Group's exposure to credit risk arises from defavlt of the counterparty.

The maximum credit risk exposure Tor the financial assets is limited to the carryving amount as disclosed in Noey 8, {9,
Il and 13, For the financial guarantee issued, the maximum credit risk exposure equals the nominal value of the
guaranteed loan agreement as disclosed in liquidity risk section of this note.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with its
financial instruments. Liguidity risk may result front an inability to sell a financial asset quickly at close to its fair value.

Liguidity requirements are monitored on a regular basis and management ensures that sufficient funds are available o
meel any commitments as they arise,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIECTIVES AND

POLICIES {(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below summarizes the maturity profile ol the Group's financial liabilities a1 31 December 2018 and 2017, based

on contraciual undiscounted payments.

1te 3 months to 1to

In thousands of tengs On demand 3 months 1 year § years >E years Total
At 31 December 2018
Debt securities issued - 6,490,781 6,490,781 51,926,248 344,326,248 409,234,058
Interest bearing loans 151,562 9,597,743 35122279 189,875,245 27,356,522 262,103,351
Trade and other payables 10,974,623 197.891,132 510,097 = e 209,375,852
Loans from refated party = 26,847,207 259,317 2,074,536 15,398,080 44,580,150
Financial guarantee

abligations = 4,278,302 12,713,114 17,410,979 2,735,407 37,197,802
Other financial liabilities 61823 1,866,529 25635 136,722 119,631 2,210,340

11,188,008 246,971,694 55,121,223 261,423,730 389,996,898 964,701,553

The financial guaraniee obligations present the amounts of original contracts the Group guaranteed during 2017,

110 3 months to 1to

In thousands of tengs On demand 3 months 1 year S years > 5 years Total
At 31 December 2017
Debt securilies issued = 5,639,769 14.802, 791 45,118,312 308903658 375564, 551
Interest bearing loans 161,108 7,582,993 24 584 542 125,240,857 25309269 183,878,769
Trade and other payables 5001537 139641,815 466,062 = = 149 109,414
Loans from related parties - 26,657,297 17,430,144 2,074 536 15,917,724 62,079,701
Financial guarantee

abligations = 2,555,081 8,342 6268 19,451 670 3,488 522 33,839,279
Other financial liabilities 103,363 208,458 1,686,693 135,722 153,812 2,279 048

9,266,008 182375413 67,312,858 192,022,097 355774 386 B06 750,762

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy
capilal ratios in order to support ils business and maximise sharcholders value.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will he able 1o continue as a going concern while maximising
the return to stakehelders through the oplimisation of the debt and equity balance. There were no changes in the Group’s
approach to eapital management as compared to 2017,

The capital siructure of the Group consisis of debt, which includes debt securilies issued, interest-bearing loans, and loans
from related party disclosed in Notes [5, /6 and /7, and cquity, comprising primarily share capital, additional paid-in
capital and retained eamings as disclosed in Note 74.

The Group’s management reviews the capital structure on a semi-annual basis. As parl of this review, management
consiclers the cost of eapital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The Group has a target debi-to-equity ratio
of no more than 1.5 The debt-to-equity ratio at the year end was as [ollows:

In thousands of tenge 2018 2017

Debt secunties issued (Mote 15) 285,046,580 264 520,852
Interest bearing loans (Nole 16) 212,584,635 132 826 892
Loans from related party (Vofe 17) 36,104,050 52,721,841
Less' cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits (Mofes 10 and 11) {155,806,875) (29 527 406)
Total debt 387,928,390 420,342 279
Equity 800,494,214 847,025,289
Debt-to-equity ratio 0.48 0.85
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

JI.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK

POLICIES {continued)

MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying value of the Group’s financial instruments as of 31 December 2018 and 2017 are reasonable approximation

of their fair value, except for the financial instruments disclosed below:

2018
Fair value by level of assessment
Quotations Essential Essential
in active abserved unobservable
Carrying markets input data input data
In thousands of tenge amount Fair value (Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial assets
Interest bearing loans to
related party 154,926,469 144,948,730 - = 144,948,730
Financial liabilities
Debt securities issued (295,046,580) (275,997 087) (275,997,067) - -
Interest bearing loans (212,584 835) (215,131,153) = {215,131,153) -
Loans from related party (36,104,050) (34,757,307) = (34,757,307) -
2017
Fair value by level of assessment
CQuotations Essential Essential
in active observed  unobservable
Carrying markets inpul data input data
In thousands of fangs amount Fair value (Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)
Financial assets
Loans Lo related party 207,557,085 209,041,188 - = 209,041,188
Financial liabilities
Debt securities issuad (264,520.852) (267 423,371) (267 423.371) - =
Interest bearing loans (132,626.892) (135,738.457) - (135,738,457 =
Loans from related parties {52,721,841) (53,372,575) - (53,372,575) -

Estimates and assumptions

The management of the Group has determined that the fair value of cash and bank deposits, trade receivables, interest
free loans provided Lo related parties, trade and other payables, and short-term loans received approximates their carrying
amount mainly due to short-term nature of these insoruments.

Fair value of quoted bonds is based on price quotations at the reporting date.

The fair values of long-term loans are determined by the DCF method using rates currently available for debt on similar
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

There have been no transfers between Level | and Level 2 during 2018 and 2017.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Changes in liabilities arising from financial activities

Foreign
exchange
In thousands 1 January Repayment gains or 31 December
of lenge 2018 Proceeds Repayments of interest lossas _Others 2018
Financial
liabilities
Interest bearing
loans 132,526,882 115,019,917  (46,888,100) (15,005.611) 11,668,548 15,161,989 212 584,835
Loans from
related party 52,721,641 = {18,283,228) (2,397,859) 1.821,601 2,841 665 36,104,060
Debt securities
issued 264,520,852 = (B,616,748) (12 422 685) 38,993,500 12,571,658 295,046,580
Total liabllities
arising from
financial
activities 445 8605 685 115018917 (74.488,074)  (29.B26,155) 52,584,679 30,575,213 543,735,265
Foreign
exchange
in thousands 1 January Repayment gans ar 31 December
of lenge 2017 Proceads  Repaymenis of inferesl _losses Others 2017
Financial
liabilities
Interest bearing
laans 140,752,403 320452039 (337,785.560) (B.244 995) 8,071,858 89381147 132,626,882
Leans fram
related party 168,307,228 25,321,800 (142,309,200) (3.773.286) 288,000 4. 887,399 52,721,841
Debt securities
issued 56,123,116 253.835477 (40,664,644} (2.317,589) (7.447.084) 4 951,686 264 520,852
Total liabilities
arising from
financial
activities 365,182 747 500,600,316 (520,750 504)  (14,335,880) 912,774 19,260,232 449,869,685

The “Others” column mainly represents interest accrued, amortization of discount and costs associated with the
organization of loans. The Group classifics interest paid as cash flows from operating activities.
32, SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group determines its operating segments based on the nature of their operations. The performance of the operating
segments is assessed by management on a regular basis.

The following reportable segments within the Group were detenmined:
" Gas trading — sales of gas within the Republic of Kazakhstan and abroad;
® Transportation and storage of gas— transportation of gas and storage of purchased gas in underground gas storages.

The remaining operating segments (exploration and production of gas and rendering transportation services) have been
aggregated and presented as other operating segment due to their insignificance.

Segment performance is evaluated based on both revenues and net profit, which are measured on the same basis as in the
consolidated financial statements, Inter-segment transactions were made on terms agreed 1o hetween the segmenis that
may not necessarily be at markel rates, except for certain regulated services, which are provided bused on the tariffs
available to related and third parties.

Substantially all of the Group®s operations and assets are located in the Republic of Kazakhstan.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

32,  SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

The following table represents information about revenues and net profit, assets and liabilities of operating segments of
the Group for 2018

Transportation

Gas and storage Other

in thousands of tenge trading of gas segments Elimination Total
Revenue from sales to

external customers 815,909,960 103,310,346 1,959,294 - 921,179,600
Revenue from sales {o other

segments 10,147,123 91,800,240 23,616,785 (125,564,148) -
Total revenue 826,057,083 195,110,586 25,576,079 {125,564,148) 921,179,600
Gross profit 130,058,637 104,749,548 10,974,546 (2,707,365) 243,075,366
Finance income 14,467,456 1,856,776 372,841 (2,812,074) 13,684,959
Finance costs (29,199,894) (11,865,598) (475,789) 2,563,888 (38,977,393)
Depreciation and

amorization {(10,503,233) (21,595,686} [3,174,182) - {35,273,101)
Impairment of property,

plant and equipment and

exploration and evaluation

assets = {443,435) (3,647,310} - (4.090,745)
Share in profit of joint

ventures - 16,709,896 39,080 - 16,748,976
Income tax expenses (28,175,630) (18,229,751) (1,259,907) = (47,665,288)
Net profit for the year 117,295,294 76,278,179 5,580,949 {43.179,364) 155,975,056
Other segment

information
Investmants in joint

vaniures - 20,794,618 1,104,753 - 21,895,371
Capital expenditures 13,240,322 130,706,207 §,509,258 (1,864,749) 147,591,738
Allowance for expected

credit losses (5,923,619) (385,478) (74,634) = (6,383,731)
Allowances for obsolete

mventones and advances

paid {34,731) (2,331,106) {285,300) - {2,711,137)
Assets of the segment 1,153,121,058 798,855,032 70,594,850 (281,060,243) 1,741,510,695
Liabilities of the segment 760,309,693 228,544,909 11,331,678 (59,169,799 941,016,481

=)
-1



KazTransGas JSC Consolidated financial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

J2.  SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

The following represents information about revenue and net profit. and assets and liabilities of operating segments of
the Group for 2017:

Transportation
Gas and storage Other

in thousands of tenge trading of gas segments Elimination Tatal
Revenue from sales to

external customers 461,870,222 116,947 422 24939127 = 581,756,771
Revenue from sales to other

segmenis 10,725,871 88,608,147 20,781.279  (100,115,297) =
Total revenue 472,596,083 185,555,569 237204068  (100,115,297) 581,756,771
Gross profit 31,752,499 107 387 474 11,013,009 (3,199.413) 146,963 580
Finance income 14,864,605 702,186 413726 (1,450,450) 14,530,067
Finance costs (27,229,003) (9.451,834) (671,104) 327,225 (36,924, 516)
Depreciation and

amartization (9,425,273) (18,326,495) (2,683,553) - (30 435,321}
Impairment of property,

plant and equipment and

exploration and evaluation

assets (173,435) (141,270) (12,000) - (326,705)
Share in (loss)/prafit of joint

ventures = (668, 700) 35,310 o (633,320)
Income tax expenses (3,582,977) (18,614 751) {1,680 596) = (24.678,324)
Net profit for the year 37,240,625 63.917.380 5.850,340 (32,227 415) 74 780,940
Other segment

information
Investments in joint

ventures = 4,084,722 1,100,673 - 5,185.385
Capital expenditures 48,066,323 89,611,230 6,756,154 = 145 433,707
Allowances for absolete

inventories, doubtful debls,

and advances paid (6,325,414) (2 B56 396) (312,271} - {9,404 081)
Assets of the segment 808,725,669 632,369,068 64,256,771 (108,007,987)  1,397.343 541
Liabilities of the segment 63, 908 324 183,858 556 11,206,598 {48.745,224) 750,318 252

Eliminations represent the exclusion ol intra-group turnovers.

In 2018, the Group generated 43% of its revenues from PetraChina Group (2017 10%) and 15% from Gazprom Group

{2017: 26%).

33.  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Group had no significant events after the end of the reponting period.

58



	начало
	8-12
	8-20_Часть1
	8-20_Часть2
	8-20_Часть3

	13-14
	15-20
	8-20 6
	8-20_Часть4
	8-20_Часть5
	8-20_Часть6

	21-35
	45-36
	46-58

